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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEO)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying (Vice President)
Mr. LIU Yi (Vice President)

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat

Authorised Representatives

Mr. LI Xiangli
Mr. CHAN Oi Fat

Audit Committee

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. ZHAO Hong (Chairman)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying
Mr. WANG Zichen

Nomination Committee

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
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Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
35th Floor, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Windward 3
Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of
Business in the PRC

Building No. 78
Zhuyuan Road

No. 12 District

Tianzhu Free Trade Zone
Beijing, China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Unit F, 16/F, Neich Tower
128 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Banker

China Merchants Bank Shuangyushu Sub-branch
Ligong Science & Technology Building

No. 9 Zhongguancun South Street

Haidian District

Beijing, China

Hong Kong Legal Advisor

Michael Li & Co.

19/F Prosperity Tower
39 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
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Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer

Office

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3
Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

Stock Code

1586

Website
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREHREEAER[/N

Below are the brief profiles of the current Directors and senior

management of the Group.

Directors

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth

information regarding the Directors.

S

UTRASERIEZNEREEABNBM -

SFEEEAH/\BREFAEAR  BREENBRTES
—ZIFATESFN=RBEIIFNTES - TRHS
BREENEH -

Date of
Appointment as
Name Age Position Director
HE Fie Bz EZREENEH
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. LI Xiangli 58 Chairman, CEO and executive Director 13 January 2016
FaFEE FE o ITRAHGRRITES 201641 A13H
Ms. ZHANG Alying 58 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
REREL L Bl FENITES 201641 A13H
Mr. LIU Yi 56 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
2154 BlARFRNTES 201641 A13H
Mr. YANG Rongbing 40 Vice chairman and executive Director 18 June 2016
BERELE BlEEHRNTES 20166 A18 H

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. WANG Gang 50
T4 E

Independent non-executive
Directors
BIFHTES

Mr. WANG Zichen 54
FrREEAE

Mr. ZHAO Hong 60
=LA

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung 56
BB &

Non-executive Director

FATES

Independent non-executive Director

BUIFATES

Independent non-executive Director

BIUFRITES

Independent non-executive Director

BUIFATES

13 January 2016
201641 A13H

18 June 2016
201646 A 18H

18 June 2016
201656 H18 H

23 July 2018
201847 A23H
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SEZENSREEBASHN

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli, aged 58, is the chairman, CEO and an executive
Director. He is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG Aiying. Mr. Li is primarily
responsible for the strategic planning and overall management of
our Group. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li joined our Group in April 2009 and was appointed as our
executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of our Company.

Mr. Li has approximately 31 years of experience in the energy testing
and inspection field. Prior to joining our Group, from October 2008 to
April 2009, Mr. Li served as a project manager of China Certification
& Inspection Group Co., Ltd. (FEI % B RE(EE) BR A A), a
state-owned testing company that serves different industries, and
was responsible for the establishment of the platform for mineral
inspection. From January 1989 to September 2008, he worked at
the coal inspection technology center of Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (X258 H A B REBZ D) and
was promoted to a deputy director in April 2004, responsible for coal
testing and inspection.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal
College (AHLEM#EFR) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master’s
degree in materials science from Yanshan University (3511 A2 in the
PRC in December 1999. He obtained the qualification as a senior
engineer in November 2001 granted by State Administration for
Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (B ) A Bt i te
ZR).

Mr. Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Leon Cornerstone
Investment Holding Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, as disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
the Shares” section of the Directors’ Report. Also, Mr. Li, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Vi (2/3) entered into an acting-in-concert deed
on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and
Mr. LIU Vi (2i)) shall support Mr. Li's decisions on material matters in
relation to the operation and management of our Group by exercising
their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and boards of
the members of our Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. Li.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 58, is a vice president of the Company
and an executive Director. She is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. Ms.
Zhang is primarily responsible for overall business management,
overall management of the procurement and human resources
departments of our Group. She is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Zhang was appointed as our executive Director on
13 January 2016. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 18 years of experience in energy field. Prior to
joining our Group, from May 1995 to February 2005. Ms. Zhang
served as a manager of examination department of Shanxi Coal
Import & Export Group Qinhuangdao Branch (LU Ta & ik i+ D £ E
285 A7]), a company primarily engaged in coal trading, and was
responsible for coal testing. From August 1988 to May 1995, she was
a teacher at No. 11 High School of Qinhuangdao (RE£&MEH+—
£ and was responsible for teaching chemistry.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei
Normal College (A 1LA#IZ3Ft ) in the PRC in July 1988.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Swan
Stone Investment Holding Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company (by virtue of the Listing Rules), as disclosed in the
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section of the
Directors’ Report. Also, Ms. Zhang, Mr. LI Xiangli and Mr. LIU Yi (21I35)
entered into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant
to the deed, Ms. Zhang and Mr. LIU Yi (2/28) shall support Mr. LI
Xiangli’s decisions on material matters in relation to the operation
and management of our Group by exercising their voting rights at
the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the members of our
Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 56, is a vice president of the Company and an
executive Director. He is primarily responsible for overall management
of sales, quality control and research. Mr. Liu joined our Group in
February 2010 as deputy general manager of Lihong Inspection, and
was appointed as our executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is
also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

EEREREEAEEHN
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SEZENSREEBASHN

Mr. Liu has approximately 32 years of experience in the energy testing
and inspection field. Prior to joining our Group, from September
1988 to January 2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (X258 H ABEREBZ D) and
was promoted to the director of the coal inspection technology center
in September 2003, responsible for coal inspection. From July 1987
to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei Building Materials
Vocational and Technical College (JAIdbEM B ZE R ITERT ), and was
responsible for teaching analytical chemistry.

Mr. Liu obtained a master’s degree in materials engineering from
Yanshan University (&LLAEZ) in the PRC in November 2006. He
obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 granted
by National Commodity Inspection Bureau (BREREH% ),
currently known as General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (R R E 8 EEE M RZE D).

Mr. Liu, Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Alying entered into an acting-
in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Mr.
Liu and Ms. ZHANG Aiying shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions
on material matters in relation to the operation and management
of our Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the
shareholders and boards of the members of our Group in accordance
with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, aged 40, is an executive Director. Mr. Yang
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 18
June 2016 and was mainly responsible for providing independent
opinion to the Board. He was re-designated as executive Director
on 23 July 2018 as well as appointed as the vice chairman and is
mainly responsible for corporate strategies, capital planning, internal
control and compliance of the Group. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yang, holder of a MBA from Central University of Finance and
Economics, was a distinguished professor of Capital University of
Economics and Business. He has served in the capital markets in
both Mainland China and Hong Kong for a long period of time. He is
an expert in adopting innovative financial tools to provide support to
enterprises on sustainable development and continuously improving
capital vehicles. Mr. Yang previously served as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of SMI Holdings Group Limited (2
EEREBE AR AR (“SMI Holdings”), a company once listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 0198). Before
joining SMI Holdings in 2010, Mr. Yang served in various financial
and investment roles in State-owned enterprises and institutions
such as Beijing Golden Tide Group Co., Ltd. (tR&FEEE
fR /A R]), Foreign Economic Cooperation Office under Ministry of
Environmental Protection (Bl ZIRIF (R& S 7ME 1EH L)) and Center
for Development of Trade and Control of Investment in Europe (BN
RERABREERF D).

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Gang, aged 50, is the non-executive Director. He is
primarily responsible for providing business guidance in relation to the
industry to our Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 13 January 2016.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in testing industry. Since
August 2011, Mr. Wang has been serving as a general manager of
operation department and legal and investment department of China
Inspection Company Limited ( El#252 5 R 2 &) (“CIC”), a company
primarily engaged in inspection and certification service, and has
been responsible for the overall management of operation, strategic,
quality control and investment. CIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company (by virtue of the Listing Rules), indirectly holding 11.63%
of the issued share capital of the Company through its subsidiary.
From January 2010 to July 2011, Mr. Wang served as the director
of the inspection and supervision department of Zhejiang Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (41T A& E#5% /) and
was responsible for the overall management of the inspection and
supervision department. From December 2003 to January 2010, Mr.
Wang served as a deputy general manager of China Certification &
Inspection Group Zhejiang Co., Ltd. (FH#%RRAEEBINIAR
A 7\]), a company primarily engaged in inspection and certification
service, and was responsible for inspection and quality management.
From December 1999 to December 2003, Mr. Wang served as the
head of Znhejiang Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Firm (#1)T A
EHE R ZE FFT) and was responsible for its overall management.

EEREREEAEEHN
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SEZENSREEBASHN

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering
from Zhejiang University (#T/TKE2) in the PRC in July 1992. He also
obtained a master’s degree in finance from Zhejiang University in the
PRC in July 2005.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to our Board. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Since September 2007, Mr. Wang has been working with China Bohai
Bank Co., Ltd (#8187 T% 5B PR A ) and is currently a branch head
of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd Tianjin Fifth Avenue Branch (#/&8R77
& 1n BB A A A2 B AR Z1T), responsible for the management
and operation of the branch.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in software engineering from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (1t =RfiZEfink
KE) in the PRC in July 2010. He obtained the qualification as a
certified cost engineer (FEf {8 TH2RM) granted by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (1 2E A & A1
B0 {3 5= Fiek 40 722 3% 26) in 2001. He also obtained the qualification as
a senior engineer granted by China State Construction Engineering
Corporation (FF B2 5 T #2422 7)) in December 2008.

Mr. ZHAO Hong, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and
judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Currently, Mr. Zhao is an independent director of Zhejiang Kaier New
Materials Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 300234), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the PRC.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since
March 1991, Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of
Energy Engineering of Zhejiang University and has been responsible
for teaching and scientific research.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in thermal energy from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree in
engineering from Zhejiang University in the PRC in January 1991. He
obtained the qualification as a professor in December 2001 granted
by Personnel Department of Zhejiang Province (T4 A EEE).

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for providing independent
opinion and judgement to the Board. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 July 2018.

Mr. Liu has over 31 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting, finance, management and secretarial work. Currently, he
is an executive director and the company secretary of Alco Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 328), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu received his Master of Science degree from
the University of Hong Kong in 2002. He is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Liu served as director and senior management positions with a
number of public companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including
being a director and joint chief executive officer of PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2078); an executive director
and the chief financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Medical and
Health Industry Group Limited (formerly known as Genvon Group
Limited, Stock code: 2389); a director, the chief executive officer and
the chief financial officer of China Merchants Land Limited (formerly
known as Tonic Industries Holdings Limited, Stock code: 0978)
and the company secretary of Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited
(Stock code: 518). Besides, Mr. Liu previously worked at international
accounting firms for a total of nine years and gained extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and taxation of listed companies.

EEREREEAEEHN
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHN

Senior Management

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 42, is the secretary to the Board and assistant
to the chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for managing daily work of the Board and assisting the
CEO in managing the business operation of our Group. Mr. Liu joined
our Group in July 2011 and was appointed current position on 16
January 2016. He is also the supervisor and director of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Liu has over 14 years of experience in testing industry. Prior to
joining our Group, from August 2009 to July 2011, Mr. Liu served as
the project manager of China Certification & Inspection Group Beijing
Co., Ltd. (FElIR%REEEILRER A F), a company primarily
engaged in import and export commodity inspection, and was
responsible for inspection business. From August 2006 to July 2009,
Mr. Liu served as the business line manager of Sinoswiss Inspection
Co., Ltd. (FImi&5 B PR A 7)), a company primarily engaged in import
and export commodity inspection, and was responsible for inspection
business management. From July 2004 to July 2006, Mr. Liu served
as the inspection supervisor of China Certification & Inspection Group
Co., Ltd. (FEI# 5 E (&) R A 7)), and was responsible for
import and export commodity inspection management.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry in July 2001 and
a master’s degree in chemistry from Tsinghua University (&% AE2)
in the PRC in July 2004. He obtained the qualification as chemical
analysis engineer ({LZ2 54T T2EM) in September 2013 granted
by Beijing Intermediate Professional and Technical Qualification
Evaluation Committee.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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China Leon Inspection Holding Limited is an international independent
inspection and testing company as well as the world’s first third-
party inspection and testing company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1586.HK). The Company is credited as
a “National High-Tech Enterprise”. We recognize the importance of
intellectual property protection. At present, the Company has been
granted 8 national invention patents, with 11 others pending approval;
28 utility patents, with 4 others pending approval; and 43 software
copyright licenses.

The Group has numerous branches and professional laboratories in
various countries and regions worldwide. In particular, we have 25
inspection agencies and laboratories across major domestic trading
ports and cities in China, including Hong Kong, Qinhuangdao,
Tangshan, Tianjin, Cangzhou, Nanjing, Jiangyin, Hunan, Hubei,
Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Xinjiang, Shaanxi, Inner Mongolia, Dalian,
Shandong, Zhoushan, Xiamen, Nanjing and Dongguan. Outside
China, the Group has 8 inspection agencies and laboratories covering
Singapore, India, Malaysia, Indonesia, Pakistan, Australia and
Vietnam. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,657 employees
in total.

As an international independent inspection and testing company,
China Leon provides customers with professional testing, inspection,
certification, consultation and related technical services round
the clock globally. Building on the Company’s two key business
areas, namely energy and commodity, and by fully leveraging its
leading advantages in different segments and economies of scale,
the Company has expanded the service scope to electric power
generation industry. We launched new inspection services in clean
energy field, especially focusing on the solar and wind power projects.
The Company also provides environmental monitoring and testing
services including ecological monitoring, soil testing, environmental
technology consultation and assessment and carbon neutrality.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREWwE

Dear Shareholders,

2020 was an extraordinary and challenging year as the world was
hit by Covid-19. At China Leon we continued to prioritize on EHS
management, strive for business growth and enthusiastically exploring
into emerging sectors. We were able to deliver record high revenue
and net profit during the year. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all members of the Group for their
hard work and all stakeholders for their continued support. The Board
is pleased to announce that it recommended the issuance of bonus
shares, in addition to the payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2020.

In June 2020, we established Leon Group’s Energy Testing
Technology Research Institute for the purpose of reinforcing research
on applied science in the field of inspection and testing, raising
operational efficiency as well as risk management, continuously
analysing market demands and enhancing customer experience.
The Institute will focus on the three key research areas in energy
inspection and testing, including innovation in service technology,
application of information technology and big data as well as related
new technologies and materials. All of the above will play an active
role in supporting the development of the existing businesses,
facilitating the expansion of new businesses, rendering innovative
testing services, training research personnel and carrying out
technological exchanges.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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In October 2020, we announced the adoption of the share award
scheme, the main purpose of which was to further improve the
corporate governance structure and long-term incentive mechanism,
promote sustainable development for the Company and its
members, attract and retain outstanding talents, and fully enhance
the motivation, dedication and commitment of the Company’s key
management and operation teams. Balancing both long-term and
short-term benefits and the interests of shareholders, we strive to
achieve sustainable growth in order to create long-term values for all
stakeholders.

In November 2020, we established the Electric Energy Business
Division to launch a new energy segment based on wind and solar
power generation, as well as the testing services in other clean
energy fields. New energy (solar energy, wind energy, etc.) testing
refers to the testing of power equipment and systems (including
power generating grid-connected systems, energy storage systems,
micro-grid control equipment and power supply systems) that collect,
convert, control, monitor and store electrical energy during the power
generation process. We also offer one-stop solutions comprising
technical and other auxiliary services for the supervision of the related
key equipment and components manufacturing, etc.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

In February 2021, we successfully acquired two leading companies
in the environmental testing sector. The first target company
was Tianjin Zhiheng Environmental Technology Limited, which is
principally engaged in soil contamination investigation technology at
contaminated land, soil contamination risk assessment technology
at contaminated land and services for soil contamination treatment
and remediation technology; consultation on environmental
protection technology; technology promotion services; environmental
governance; environmental monitoring; environmental protection
engineering design and construction; wholesale and retail of chemical
products (except dangerous goods and easily manufactured
drugs), instrumentation and environmental protection equipment;
as well as technology development, consultation and services of
environmental protection equipment. The second target company
was Tianjin Huaneng Environmental Monitoring Service Co., Ltd.
and is principally engaged in environmental protection monitoring;
ecological monitoring; environmental assessment services; product
characteristics and features inspection services; certification
services; technology development, technology transfer, technology
consultation, and technical services. These acquisitions enabled
China Leon to successfully move into the environmental related
field. The Chinese government places great emphasis on ecological
environment protection by integrating ecological environmental
governance into the overall ecological civilization reform programme.
The 19th CPC National Congress even set forth the overall goal of
building a “Beautiful China” by 2035. We will proactively develop our
business in line with the national policies and continue to provide
enterprises and government agencies with the services in the field
of environment and air quality monitoring, environmental consulting,
energy conservation and environmental protection and carbon
neutrality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Company benefited from China’s economic policies
and the growing market demand amid the global public
health event as well as the complex and fast changing
macroeconomic environment in 2020. The management
focused on high-quality development by integrating all daily
operations into comprehensive ERP systems, accurately
grasping the market trend with strategic advantages, which
further strengthened operational efficiency, competitiveness
and brand influence. In 2020, total operating income of the
Company amounted to RMB574.0 million, representing an
increase of 44.8% as compared to the corresponding period
last year; total profit was RMB74.9 million, representing an
increase of 160.3% as compared to the corresponding period
last year. During the reporting period, all key performance
indicators hit a record high, laying a good foundation for
launching new growth strategy.

During the reporting period, due to the introduction of effective
prevention and control measures, China and Singapore,
our major business markets, were the first to restore normal
production and operations. The overall business of the
Company was growing well, with continuous increase in all
businesses. As we reacted proactively to China’s policy for the
Belt and Road Initiative and high-quality development, the core
business of our energy inspection segment grew strongly, thus
further consolidating our leading position in this segment. We
overcame the adverse impact caused by pandemic, strove to
enhance service quality and further expanded field inspection,
technical consultation and training services. We further
strengthened our customers relationships and increased our
company capability which ensure the rapid growth ahead for
the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE WD T

Continuous enhancement of brand influence
and credibility - The Company has obtained CMA
“Qualification Certificate of Inspection and Testing
Agency” issued by the Certification and Accreditation
Administration of the People’s Republic of China
and the CNAS “Laboratory Accreditation Certificate”
issued by the China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment. In overseas, it has obtained
ISO17025, ISO17020 and ISO14001 certifications.
We have reached the standards for internationally
recognized testing and inspection agencies and
other authoritative standards in terms of professional
capabilities. We have been granted full membership
of China Entry & Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Association and full membership of China Certification
& Accreditation Association. We joined IFIA as a full
member in 2018 and became a full member of TIC
Council (a merger of IFIA and CEOC) in 2019. The
recognition of all of these qualifications assures that
our inspection reports are more internationally credible.

Diversified customer structure — having maintained
stable and good partnership with major customers
such as CHN Energy, Shaanxi Coal Group, China Coal
Group, Yitai Group, Datang Group, China Resources
Group, CNPC, SINOPEC, CNOOC, ChemChina,
SinoChem, Shell, BP, Exxon-Mobil, Chevron, Total,
Saudi Aramco, ENOC and Rosneft, new customers
were added to the new energy sector, such as
Goldwind Science & Technology, SANY Heavy Industry,
China Huadian Corporation, China General Certification
Center and Tianjin Zhonghai Engineering Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. (KEF BT EEEZRERAAF).
During the reporting period, we increased the number
of our regional customers and successfully executed
the co-ordinated marketing campaign which further
expanded our overall customer base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Continuous strong growth in the energy
inspection business — The Company successfully
acquired Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection
Co., Ltd. and Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited
(formerly known as Core Laboratories (Hong Kong)
Limited) in 2018, and then Saybolt (Singapore) Pte
Ltd (“Saybolt (Singapore)”) in 2019, which marked two
major milestones for the Group in globalization and
diversification, and enabled the Group to successfully
venture into the petroleum business in the Asia-Pacific
Region and extended its services, such as technical
testing and inspection as well as analysis services
(including product and service certification) for oil,
natural gas, chemicals and fuel bulk cargoes, to cover
Singapore and the surrounding areas, thus broadening
its business scope. Our successful implementation of
the post-acquisition integration framework enabled
us to fully unlock the business potential of the two
acquired companies and maximise our return on
investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRRl

Business Strategies and Future Prospects

2021 marks the start of China’s “14th 5-year Plan”. It is also
an extraordinary year in China’s modernization process. With
the support of China’s national policies. China Leon continues
to advance in all business areas while maintaining growth.
Building on the successful acquisitions over the past three
years, the Company is fully committed to the 2+X strategy.
The Group will further strengthen our competitive advantage
in the field of energy and commodities inspection and testing,
leveraging on our leading market position and focusing our
resources on the three key business areas; (i) new energy
inspection and testing, (i) general inspection and testing; and
(iiiy inspection and testing in an emerging industry. Adopting
a comprehensive corporate financial strategy and leveraging
the opportunity arising from the reform of the domestic TIC
market, the Company will work with “business partners”
who value the same business ethics and integrity to build
an integrated business group for inspection, testing and
certification. We will also continue to develop our strategies
with long term vision and embrace our corporate values of
reliability, professionalism, integrity, diversity, transparency and
sustainability.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and An'é|yfsis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY 7 B g
Overview BE
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
ARET T ARBT T B 5
Revenue A 573,990 396,456 44.8%
Profit before tax H AT A 92,329 46,900 96.9%
Profit for the year F A FE 74,858 28,757 160.3%
Revenue WA

The Group’s revenue increased by 44.8% from approximately
RMB396.5 million in 2019 to approximately RMB574.0 million in
2020. The Company has achieved favorable performance across
all business units. In particular, the energy inspection segment has
recorded robust growth during the year which further consolidated
our Group’s leading position. The table below sets forth the revenue
breakdown for each of our service offerings.

REBAM AN 2019F 4 AR 396.5 5 & L1
FE2020FHARES740EETT © IR A44.8% °
RAREEBIRREKE R - HP gL RBIRIER
FREFSENER  E—PZEREERE LM
i o TREFIKMSBERBGOUWARM -

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARKETTT

Testing services ORI AR S 358,198 254,282
Surveying services 28 7F IR1% 172,578 127,426
Witnessing and ancillary services REBRERE 43,214 14,748
573,990 396,456
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRRl

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the year increased by 160.3% from
approximately RMB28.8 million in 2019 to approximately RMB74.9
million in 2020. The significant growth was driven by the continuous
enhancement of operational efficiency, brand influence and
comprehensive cost control measures during the year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB, USD and SGD. The Group
remained in a strong cash position throughout 2019 and 2020, with
cash and cash equivalents of RMB76.0 million and RMB78.9 million
as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 respectively.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Group had net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB70.5 million and RMB102.2 million in 2019 and
2020 respectively. The increase in the Group’s cash flows from
operating activities was primarily due to higher revenue generation.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

The Group had net cash outflows from financing activities of
approximately RMB36.9 million in 2019 and approximately RMB64.5
million in 2020. This was primarily due to (1) repayment of borrowings,
interest and lease liabilities of RMB96.4 million, (2) dividend payment
of RMB15.0 million and (3) purchase of shares for share award
scheme of RMB5.1 million, partially offset by additional borrowing of
RMB50 million.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately RMB0.8 million for contracted but not performed
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of RMB78.9 million as at
31 December 2020. The Group is in a strong and healthy financial
position and has enough resources to support its operations and
meet its foreseeable capital expenditures.

Treasury Management and Funding Policy

The primary objectives of our capital management are to safeguard
our ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support our business and maximize our
Shareholders’ value. We manage and adjust our capital structure
considering changes in economic conditions and the risks of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust our capital structure, we
may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or raise funds through issuing new equity.

We have a prudent treasury operation to manage our investments
in financial products. We only invest in low risk financial instruments
from reputable commercial banks that can be redeemed on a same-
day basis or otherwise within a short notice period, including primarily
bank-sponsored wealth management products, such as bonds,
money market funds and interbank deposits.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or guarantees to third parties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRRl

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The
calculation of gearing ratio is based on total net debt divided by
capital plus net debt and multiplied by 100.0%. Net debt is calculated
as trade payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank loans and other loans, less cash and cash equivalents as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is
calculated as “equity attributable to owners of the Company” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

B|RE R

REBMEMERLREITER - BRLERTIIRBE
EFERAE ARG EFEWLEIA100.0% T H -
BEFEIIRGEMBIRAERRE SEMNHKIE
H B RIBERETIER « SHERTERREME
FREE RS EEBYRTE - BRBEIIREH
BARREKITUR [ A A A AEGHERS ] 518 -

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%¥T AREEFTT

Trade payables = AN 35,259 45,456
Other payables and accruals HAbfETRIA R EETIA R 51,580 42,820
Bank loans and other loans RITERNEMER 33,830 63,273

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRRSEEY (78,875) (76,008)
Net debt BEFHE 41,794 75,541
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A 1A AFE(LiEZS 251,105 222,953
Capital and net debt EAXARBETFE 292,899 208,494
Gearing ratio TER L 14.27% 25.31%

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations. The Group enters into
transactions only with recognized and creditworthy parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to have credit transactions
with the Group are subject to credit verification procedures taking
into account the customers’ financial position and the Group’s past
experience with the customers.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020

FERR

EERBRERTFPAR ST REBOMELRRD
Rz - ANEEERER A REERIFNR ST HE
X5 AEENERERRTE - AEEAEERRER
RPNMAEREFPHABRBEERERF G RAH
BEF MBI AR EERBERZHER)



Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, the Group monitors receivable balances on an ongoing
basis, and its exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
management of the Group evaluates the creditworthiness of its
existing and prospective customers and ensures that the customers
have adequate financing for the projects as well as the source of the
financing. No collateral is required.

The Group’s other financial assets include other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents. The credit risk of these financial assets arises
from default of the counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit risk
equals to the carrying amounts of these assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group was exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and
cash equivalents, receivables, payables and borrowings that were
denominated in a currency other than respective functional currencies
of the Group’s entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk were
primarily Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and Singapore dollar.

Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Charges on Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group purchased two
buildings from an independent third party with a cash consideration
of RMB37.7 million. One of the buildings was pledged by this third
party for certain purpose before the purchase. The pledge has
been released and the application of building’s property ownership
certificate is in progress as of the date of the annual report.

In addition, certain investment properties of the Group with a total
carrying value of RMB17.4 million as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB18.6 million) were pledged to obtain a banking
facility from a bank amounting to RMB10.0 million (31 December
2019: RMB10.0 million).
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The Board has committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company had complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code save for the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 while such deviation is explained in the relevant paragraph
below of this corporate governance report.

The Board will, from time to time, review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

A. The Board
A1. Responsibilities and Delegation

The powers and duties of our Board include managing
our business, convening general meetings, reporting
our Board’s work at our Shareholder’s meetings,
preparing financial budgets and final reports,
formulating proposals for profit distributions as well
as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Articles.

A2. Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises eight members, which consist of four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and
three independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Alying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Gang
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A4.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Chairman and Chief Executive

Currently, Mr. LI Xiangli takes up the roles of both
chairman of the Board and CEO, which is deviated
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company are performed by the same individual. The
Board considers that Mr. Li possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. In the opinion
of the Directors, through supervision by the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors, together with
effective control of the Company’s internal check and
balance mechanism, the same individual performing
the roles of chairman and CEO can achieve the goal
of improving the Company’s efficiency in decision-
making, execution and effectively capturing business
opportunities. The Board will review the effectiveness
of this arrangement from time to time.

During the year, the chairman met once with
independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject
to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each
of the Directors is appointed for a term of three
years pursuant to their service contracts or letters of
appointment.

Details of specific term of each of the Directors are
set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service
Contracts” of the Directors’ Report.

A3.

A4.
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According to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM.
The Directors who shall retire in each year will be those
who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment, but as between persons
who become or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day, those to retire will (unless they otherwise
agree among themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors should be eligible for re-election at the
relevant AGM. In addition, any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting, whereas any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election. The Director appointed by
the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting.

Training and Continuing Development for
Directors

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visiting to the Company’s
key plant sites and meetings with senior management
of the Company.

The existing Directors are continually updated with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Trainings and professional development
for Directors are arranged whenever necessary. In
addition, reading materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations applicable to the Company
are provided to Directors from time to time for their
studying and reference.
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The Directors are required to submit to the Company EEEANSUBRFRERARGRR
details of the training they received in each financial HEeEXOEIEFS - WHAAR
year for the Company’s maintenance of proper training GFEESHEEEIIRH - BIEA
records of the Directors. According to the training ARlBRIFEMEILE  EFR
records currently maintained by the Company, during FANDBRB(PEEARTRNDEALS
the year, the Directors had complied with the code KRGS 2 BN Y BEE XS

provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in BlE
continuous professional training as follows:

Type of training/education

=V §=F Eicl
Reading regulatory
Attending training updates or corporate
on regulatory governance related
development, materials or
directors’ duties or materials relevant to
other relevant topics directors’ duties
HERNREERR - HEEEREMERAR
ESHEWR HEPEERBRANERDS
Name of Director EEHE H {48 B8 = ERYIE I EHESHEFENMTE
Mr. LI Xiangli FRIFEAE v/ v/
Ms. ZHANG Alying RE R v v
Mr. LIU Yi 2R % A4 v v
Mr. YANG Rongbing e v/ v/
Mr. WANG Gang FHEE v/ v
Mr. WANG Zichen FrREEAE v/ v/
Mr. ZHAO Hong FHET S A v/ v/
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BT E v v/
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Directors’ Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance records of each Director at the Board
and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out below:

AG6.

ESNERHFERLE

BEEEHRARBEZE2020F 12
A1 BIEFEHERITHNESRS S
# EFTEEEEABREREN
CEREFI AT ¢

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENEEE FMEEE REZEE
Name of Director EEHS A = = =6 RRAE
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Mr. LI Xiangl FmFEE 9/9 N/A N/A 1/1 il
Ms. ZHANG Alying RERZL 9/9 N/A 11 N/A il
Mr. LIU Yi 2|5 E 9/9 N/A N/A N/A 11
Mr. YANG Rongbing BRELE 8/9 N/A N/A N/A il
Non-executive Director: FBTEE:
Mr. WANG Gang THEE 3/9 N/A N/A N/A 11
Independent non-executive B FHTEE :
Directors:
Mr. WANG Zichen THEEAE 4/9 2/2 1/1 11 0/
Mr. ZHAO Hong I AE 3/9 2/2 1/1 11 1/1
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BH@EE 4/9 2/2 N/A N/A il
N/A: not applicable N/A = N A
Model Code for Securities Transactions A7. ETESFRZNZEESFR

The Company has adopted the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding dealings in the
securities of the Company by the Directors and the
Company’s employees who, because of their offices or
employments, are likely to possess inside information
of the Company and/or securities.
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Having made specific enquiry by the Company
with all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Role and Function of the Board and the
Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which are reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The
Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to management while reserving certain key matters,
mainly relating to the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies, policies and business plans,
and overseeing and evaluating the performance of
the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the
success of the Group and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. Board committees
for specific functions are also set up to ensure efficient
Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision
still rests with the Board unless otherwise provided
for in the terms of reference of the relevant Board
committees.
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A10. Relationship between Directors

Set out below are the relationship between Directors
as required to be disclosed under code provision I(h) of

the CG Code:

1. Mr. LI Xiangli is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG

Aliying.

2. Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU
Yi entered into an acting-in-concert deed on
31 January 2016 whereby Ms. ZHANG Alying
and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’'s
decisions on material matters in relation to the
operation and management of our Group by
exercising their voting rights at the meetings of
the shareholders and boards of the members
of our Group in accordance with the decision of

Mr. LI Xiangli.

B. Board Committees

The Company has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference which are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and on the Company’s website (www.leontest.com). All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their

decisions or recommendations made.

B1. Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three
members, being two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHAO Hong (chairman of
the committee) and Mr. WANG Zichen, and one
executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG Aiying.
Throughout the year, the Company had met the
Listing Rule requirements of having the majority of the
Remuneration Committee members being independent
non-executive Directors as well as having the
committee chaired by an independent non-executive

Director.
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The primary function of the Remuneration Committee
is to develop remuneration policies of our Directors,
evaluate the performance, make recommendations
on the remuneration packages of our Directors
and senior management and evaluate and make
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.
During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held to review the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company as
well as the total amount of remuneration paid by the
Company in year 2020.

The attendance records of each committee member in
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the
year are set out in section A6 above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band (HK$) HENEE (FBT) N |
Nil to 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 4
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000 -
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001 2 2,000,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the
year are set out in Note 11 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee comprises a total of three
members, being one executive Director, namely
Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the committee), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout the
year, the Company had met the code provision A.5.1
of having a majority of the committee members being
independent non-executive Directors and having the
committee chaired by the chairman of the Board.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board; identifying individual suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and select or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and succession planning of Directors;
and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, as well as reviewing the board
diversity policy and the nomination policy.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the criteria for and process and procedures
of nomination of Directors. In accordance with the
nomination policy, in evaluation and selecting a
candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be
considered include:

- character and integrity of the individual;

- qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
and diversity aspects under the board diversity
policy (summarised below) of the Company that
are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

- any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving diversity on the Board;

- requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be
considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules;

- any potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;
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- willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

- such other perspectives that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and succession plan
and where applicable, may be adopted and/or
amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of
Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination
process and procedures, including but not limited to:

1. evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new Director;

2. if there are more than one desirable candidate,
rank the candidates with reference to the needs
of the Company and the reference check of
each candidate; and

3. recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as the new Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and regards the increasing
diversity at the Board as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.
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Summary of Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition
and the nomination of directors (as applicable),
Board diversity has to be considered from a number
of aspects, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience.

Measurable Objectives and Progress

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company’s business growth. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and make recommendation to the Board. For
the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were fulfilled
during the year:

1. at least one-third of the members of the Board
shall be independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least one of the members of the Board shall
have obtained accounting or other professional
qualifications;

3. at least one of the members of the Board is
female; and
4. at least half of the independent non-executive

Directors shall have work experience in
industries other than coal inspection.
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Annual Review

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board in consideration of the board
diversity policy, and to review the nomination criteria
and procedures, the performance of Directors and the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The independence of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, and the Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the guidelines for assessing the independence set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained. The Nomination Committee also
considered that the Directors are rich in knowledge,
experience and background and their outstanding skills
in their respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Nomination Committee meeting are set out in
section AB above.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee comprises a total of three members, all
being independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman of the committee), Mr.
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. The Company
has met the Listing Rule requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the
year.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and interim report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein; reviewing the Company’s financial
controls, and overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements which
can be used by the employees of the Company,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. Its main
duties include developing and reviewing the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Group; and reviewing the Group’s
compliance with the CG code and the Model Code
and the disclosure in the corporate governance report
to be contained in the Company’s annual reports.
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During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review the annual and interim financial
results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 and in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2020. The Audit Committee also
reviewed financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems as well as the scope of work of
external auditor. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Audit Committee meetings are set out in section
A6 above.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
and review their effectiveness in order to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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D.1 Control Structure

D.2

The Company implemented various policies and
procedures to ensure effective risk management at
each aspect of its operation, including the provision of
on-site inspection, surveying and sampling services,
performance of analytical tests in our laboratories,
administration of daily operation, financial reporting
and recording, fund management, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection and workplace safety. The policies and
procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The internal audit department monitors compliance
with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control structures across
the Group and its principal divisions. The internal audit
department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensure the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.

Control Approach

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures, reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems and resolving
material internal control defects. The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff members,
reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Company’s
internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the
risk management and internal control are reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee during the year.
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D.3

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee,
annually assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and
procedures and considered the adequacy of resources
and financial reporting function.

Annual Review

For the year 2020, the Board through the Audit
Committee had conducted an annual review on the
systems of internal control and risk management of
the Company. The review covered material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group. Areas
of improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures have been put in place to manage the risks.
The improvement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and
the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and
processes. The Board considers that the internal
control and risk management systems are effective
and adequate.
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D.4 Inside Information

The Company formulated the inside information policy.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees of the Group about the due compliance with
all policies regarding the inside information (as defined
under the SFO). Also, the Company keeps Directors,
senior management and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare
or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure
the compliance with regulatory requirements. Under
the policy, heads of business units shall report to the
Directors any potential inside information event as
soon as practicable before or when it materialises
for determining the nature of developments, and if
required, making disclosure.

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat (“Mr. Chan”) is the Company Secretary. The
primary contact person at the Company with Mr. Chan is
Mr. ZHANG Yu Kevin, the chief financial officer of the Group.

During the year, Mr. Chan was responsible for providing
advice to the Board on corporate governance matters. Mr.
Chan confirmed that he took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.
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The fees paid/payable to the external auditor in respect of
audit services and non-audit services (if any) for the year are
analyzed below:
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Fees paid/payable

Bt EAHEH

RMB’000

Service Category BRI AREFIT
Audit =it

Annual audit service FEERE 1,600

Communications with Shareholders
and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders (both individual and institutional, and
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large) is essential for enhancing investor relations and
ensuring ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including
financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments and governance) by investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.leontest.com as
a communication platform with Shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations and other information are
available for inspection for public access.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and
other general meetings. Board members, in particular,
the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates,
appropriate management executives and external auditor
will use all reasonable efforts to attend AGMs and to answer
shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors.
All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company (www.leontest.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after each
general meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder entitled to
attend and vote at a general meeting to appoint a proxy, who
need not be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote
thereat on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons
for election as Directors, please refer to the procedures
available on the website of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to
the Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of the
rights of Shareholders.

In case of shareholding enquiries, Shareholders should
direct their enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, via its online holding enquiry at www.computershare.
com, dial its hotline at (852) 2862 8555 or go in person at
its public counter at 17M Floor / 17 Floor, Shops 1712-16,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and
relevant laws and regulations. The Board shall take into
account the factors of the Group when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, including but not
limited to, the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, capital requirements and
expenditure plans and interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the year
2020 together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year.

Principal Business Activities

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 29
July 2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for the year
by principal activities is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Notes 5 and 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, principal risks and uncertainties of the Group’s business, and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, a discussion on relationships with its key stakeholders
is included in the sections headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 230 of this annual report.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 79 and 80 of this annual report.
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The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.0375 per share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 5 July 2021. The proposed
final dividend will be paid on or around Thursday, 15 July 2021
subject to approval at the AGM to be held on Friday, 18 June 2021 (the
“2021 AGM”).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars
will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to
Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China
during the period from Tuesday, 15 June 2021 to Friday, 18 June
2021.

ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES

Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at the 2021 AGM and
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in
such new shares, the Board proposes to make a bonus issue of one
new share for every ten shares held to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 5
July 2021. The relevant resolution will be proposed at the 2021 AGM,
and if passed and upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of and permission to deal in such new shares,
share certificates for the bonus shares will be posted on or around
Thursday, 15 July 2021.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from Tuesday, 15 June 2021 to Friday, 18 June 2021, both
days inclusive and during which period no share transfer will
be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entittement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 11 June 2021; and

(ii) from Tuesday, 29 June 2021 to Monday, 5 July 2021, both
days inclusive and during which period no share transfer will
be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend and bonus shares.
In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend
and bonus shares, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28 June 2021.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

During the year, other than the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme as set out in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” and Notes 33 and 34 to the
financial statements respectively, the Company did not enter into any
equity-linked agreement or subsisted at the end of the year.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During the production process, the Group
has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and waste air
discharge management.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any Shares during the year 2020.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 83 and 84 of this annual report and Note
48 to the financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company'’s distributable reserves were
RMB134.3 million.
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Donations

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year
(2019: nil).

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, directors of
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Aiying
Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing

Non-Executive Director
Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Biographical Details of the Directors and
the Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on
pages 5 to 12 in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM had proposed to have any service contract with our
Company or any of our subsidiaries, other than contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer, which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without the payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). The directors’ remuneration is
determined with references to directors’ duties and responsibilities,
individual performance and the results of the Group.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Three of our executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Vi, have respectively entered into service contract
with our Company pursuant to which each of them agreed to act as
an executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing
from 13 January 2016. Such terms were renewed for a further three
years commencing from 13 January 2019 upon expiry.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, formerly an independent non-executive Director,
has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as
the vice chairman of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr.
YANG has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant
to which he agreed to act as an executive Director for an initial term
of three years commencing from 23 July 2018.

Non-executive Director’s and Independent
Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment

Our non-executive Director, Mr. WANG Gang, has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company pursuant to which he has
been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from
13 January 2016. Such term was renewed for a further three years
commencing from 13 January 2019 upon expiry.

Two of our independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG
Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, have respectively entered into a letter
of appointment with our Company pursuant to which each of them
has been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing
from 18 June 2016. Such term was renewed for a further three years
commencing from 18 June 2019 upon expiry.
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Mr. LIU Hoi Keung has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. LIU has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company pursuant to which he
has been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing
from 23 July 2018.

Our non-executive Director received no director’s fee. Each of our
independent non-executive Directors received a director’s fee of
HK$100,000 per annum.

Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the year 2020 and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Emolument of Directors and Senior
Management

We offer our executive Directors and senior management members,
who are also employees of our Company, emolument in the form
of salaries, allowances, remuneration, pension, discretionary bonus
and other welfares. Our non-executive Director does not receive
any emolument from our Group. Our independent non-executive
Directors receive emolument in the form of director's fee based on
their responsibilities (including being members or chairman of Board
committees). We adopt a market and incentive-based employee
emolument structure and implement a multi-layered evaluation system
which focuses on performance and management goals.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits,
performance-related bonuses and pension scheme contributions)
paid to the Directors in aggregate for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB5.6 million.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, performance-
related bonuses and pension scheme contributions) paid to our
Group’s five highest paid individuals in aggregate for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately RMB12.9 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments were paid by
our Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors had waived any emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 11 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to
motivate Directors and employees. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this directors’ report and Note 33 to the financial statements.

Furthermore, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on
27 October 2020 to motivate the Company’s middle and senior
management, core technological personnel and operations team.
Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the section headed
"Share Award Scheme" of this directors' report and Note 34 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments had been made or
were payable, for the year ended 31 December 2020, by our Group
to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to article 191 of the Company’s articles of association, every
Director or officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company from liabilities which they may incur by reason
of execution of their duties.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Competing Business

Except otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the year,
none of the Directors were considered to be interested in businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our core businesses.

Deed of Non-competition

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by
the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed
to the Company that they have complied with the non-competition
undertakings during the year. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the year, and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that such undertakings
have been complied with.

Pension Scheme

Details of the pension scheme of the Company are set out in Note 35
to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share option
scheme conditionally approved and adopted by written resolutions of
our then Shareholders on 5 May 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain
and motivate employees, Directors and such other participants
and to further perfect corporate governance structure,
propel the Company to build up and complete motivating
mechanism, fully motivate employees, and effectively help
to align the interests of Shareholders, Company and its
employees by the grant of options.

(i) Participants

The directors, officers and employees of any member of the
Group as determined by the Board from time to time.
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

The total number of shares available for issue

The Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted under this Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option(s)”)) shall not exceed
40,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the total number of
the Shares in issue on the date the Shares commence trading
on the Stock Exchange).

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
30,240,000 shares, representing approximately 7.56% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Share Options granted to each participant
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
Eligible Employee would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such Eligible
Employee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with such Eligible Employee and his/her close
associates abstaining from voting.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of grant, such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular option is granted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised (i.e. vesting period)

Options may be vested over such period(s) as determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to compliance
with the requirements under any applicable laws, regulations
or rules to which the Share Option Scheme may be subject,
including the Listing Rules or regulations of any stock
exchange on which the Shares may be listed and quoted.
Furthermore, the Shares to be issued and allotted to a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of any Option under the Share Option
Scheme may or may not, at the discretion of the Board, be
subject to any retention period.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
period within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid

RMB1.00 within 15 days from the date of grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant
in the offer at the time of the offer, and shall be no less than
the highest of:

(@ the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option, which shall
be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option (provided
that, in the event that any Share Option is proposed to
be granted within a period of less than five Business
Days after the trading of the Shares first commences
on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price of the
Shares for the share offer shall be used as the closing
price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange);
and

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the

©  BOHRNERBERERLARNEE

relevant Share Option. BE -
(ix) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme (ix) BRETINRERFRH
The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a RERSRESt 2B B 20175 A5 B (BT
period of 10 years commencing on 5 May 2017, the date on EIEREAZER B GHERAR B ED) RE K
which the Share Option Scheme is conditionally adopted by RAR - BE10F -
resolution of our Shareholders.
(x)  Present status of the Share Option Scheme (x) EBRAESHEIRAR
Movements in the Share Options during the year were as FRBRENZFEHOT
follows:
No. of Share Options
EREHA
Granted Lapsed Exercise
As at during during As at price per Exercise
Date of grant Participant 1/1/2020 the Year the Year 31/12/2020 Share period
#20205 #2020%
RitiAH S8% 1A18 ERERE EREAR 12A31A BRTERE TR R
(HKS)
(B7)
472017 Employees (aggregate) 2,325,000 - (270,000) 2,055,000 1.28 4/7/2018-3/7/2023
[E& (53) 1,985,000 - - 1,965,000 128 4/7/2019-3/7/2024
2,860,000 - (120,000) 2,740,000 1.28 4/7/2020-3/7/2025
23/7/2018 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.414 23/7/2018-22/7/2023
executive Director 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1.414 23/7/2019-22/7/2024
BREEE: 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1414 23/7/2020-22/7/2025
#ES
10,150,000 - (390,000) 9,760,000
Notes: BisE -
1. The above Share Options are either vested on date of 1. T EREAREEHREMFTE NGB

grant to two years or vested in one to three years from the

date of grant and are exercisable for a period of five years

commencing from the relevant vesting date and expiring at

the close of business on the last day of the five-year period.

2. No Share Options were granted, exercised or cancelled

during the year.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October
2020. The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to further
improve the corporate governance structure and long-term incentive
programme, maintain mutually sustainable growth of the Company
and individuals, attract and retain excellent talents.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
determine the criteria for any eligible participants to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as award holders in accordance with the
rules of the Share Award Scheme. An award holder may be granted
an award of Shares (the “Award Shares”). The Award Shares to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme are ordinary shares
(“Ordinary Shares”) in the capital of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 October 2020 for further
details of the Share Award Scheme.

In general, the Company will pay to the third party trustee (the
“Trustee”) monies and may give directions or a recommendation
to the Trustee to apply such amount of monies and/or such other
net amount of cash derived from Ordinary Shares held as part of
the funds of the trust to acquire existing Ordinary Shares from the
market. Such Ordinary Shares will be held on trust by the Trustee for
the relevant award holders. The Trustee shall not exercise any voting
rights in respect of any Ordinary Shares held in the trust and no award
holder is entitled to instruct the Trustee to exercise the voting rights in
respect of any unvested Award Shares.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

Arrangements for the Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section in this
directors’ report and in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the financial year or at the end of the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding company
or the subsidiaries of its holding company a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

To the knowledge of the Board, as at 31 December 2020, the
interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) (a) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
(b) which were required, under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were required
under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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EEEHRE

Approximate

percentage
Number of Number of of issued
Shares Underlying share capital
Name of Directors Nature of Interests (Note 1) Shares of the Company
ERRARE BT
ROBE BRA B4
g REME (W7t 1) HERGEAE Bk
Mr. LI Xiangli (Notes 2, 3 & 4) Interests held jointly with another 227,194,000 (L) - 56.80%
EMAEE(fiF2 3K 4) person
Interests of a controlled corporation
Interests of spouse
HE— AT HRAKENER
XA EER
[ g
Ms. ZHANG Aiying Interests held jointly with another 227,194,000 (L) - 56.80%
(Notes 2, 4 & 5) person
REHZT Interests of a controlled corporation
(Bzt2 - 4%5) Interests of spouse
HE— AT HRFENER
R EE R
fiEms
Mr. LIU Yi (Notes 2 & 6) Interests held jointly with another 227,194,000 (L) - 56.80%
oS (M2 Kk 6) person
Interests of a controlled corporation
HE— AT HRAKENER
XA EER
Mr. YANG Rongbing Beneficial owner 1,990,000 (L) 3,000,000 (L) 1.25%
BRESE ERBEA (Note 7)
(W7 7)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and
underlying Shares.

There was a duplication of interests of 227,194,000 Shares among
Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi. On 31 January
2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi entered into
an acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge and confirmed that they
are parties acting in concert in respect of each of the members of our
Group during and since the three years ended 31 December 2013,
2014 and 2015 and continue after the date of the deed. Pursuant
to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Alying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI
Xiangli's decisions on material matters in relation to the operation
and management of our Group by exercising their voting rights at
the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the members of our
Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli. For details,
see in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Our Controlling Shareholders Acting in Concert” in the Prospectus.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Alying and Mr. LIU
Yi are deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by
each other.

Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited (“Leon Investment”) is
beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leon
Investment.

Ms. ZHANG Alying is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Aiying are deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by each other.

Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited (“Swan Stone”) is beneficially
and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Swan
Stone.

Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (“Hawk Flying”) is beneficially
and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hawk Flying.

Of which, 3,000,000 Share Options, each entitles its holder to
subscribe for one Share, were granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing (who
was re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to
an executive Director and appointed as the vice chairman of the
Company on 23 July 2018) on 23 July 2018.

As at 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of the Company
was 400,000,000 Shares.
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Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of Directors,
as at 31 December 2020, there were no interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
in that section, or were required under the Model Code to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in the Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2020, the
following corporations/persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more in the issued
Shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

T ERRR E A A LR R
i

SLEEA  BE 20209128318 3R
AT (BEERARAESITBRABRIN RE BT
% 17 Sk AR BE A% 10 P B IR B EE 5 R HR & &1 )58
XVEBE 2 k37 BB E R X ZAEM A R 7&%&5&%&
T R BCE S M EE GRS 336 (RZER AR
e SR MATRE 8RR 5% S RS ¢

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests Shares Company
HAELABE BT
RRESEB RS R EE BRAEANBHEDL
Ms. WEI Yajuan (Notes 2 & 6) Interests of spouse 227,194,000 (L) 56.80%
BBt Witz ke) [y e
Leon Investment (Notes 3 & 6) Beneficial owner 140,970,000 (L) 35.24%
Leon Investment (#7i£ 3 % 6) EmEAA
Swan Stone (Notes 4 & 6) Beneficial owner 49,474,000 (L) 12.37%
Swan Stone (A7t 4 X 6) EnBEEA
Hawk Flying (Notes 5 & 6) Beneficial owner 36,750,000 (L) 9.19%
Hawk Flying (#7775 X% 6) BEEERA
China Certification & Inspection Group Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
CO., Ltd. (¢.$A%fuuu&($@)ﬁlgﬁ
2 1\]) (“CCIC") (Notes 7 & 8)
HEl B RRRE (B AR AR SN E
(T Bl R E ) (7 7% 8)
China Inspection Company Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
(FERBRBRAE) (“‘CIC)
(Notes 7 & 8)
PERER AR AT SN
(Tt Ra| ) (M7 %8)
China Dragon Inspection & Certification Beneficial owner 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%

(H.K.) Limited (“China Dragon”)
(Notes 7 & 8)

BERERRE (BF)
BRAR(THEED (H7F7%8)

BEmEA A
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Ms. WEI Yajuan is the spouse of Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. WEI Yajuan is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are
interested by Mr. LIU Yi.

Leon Investment is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Leon Investment.

Swan Stone is beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Alying.
By virtue of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Aiying is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Swan Stone.

Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Hawk Flying.

There was a duplication of interests of 227,194,000 Shares among
Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Y1, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon
Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk Flying. Of these Shares, Mr. LI
Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were
deemed interested in the 140,970,000 Shares, 49,474,000 Shares
and 36,750,000 Shares held by Leon Investment, Swan Stone and
Hawk Flying respectively.

China Dragon is a 99.88% owned subsidiary of CIC, which is a 75%
owned subsidiary of CCIC. By virtue of the SFO, CIC and CCIC are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by China Dragon.

There was a duplication of interests of 46,500,000 Shares among
China Dragon, CIC and CCIC.

As at 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of the Company
was 400,000,000 Shares

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of Directors, as
at 31 December 2020, no other persons (other than the Directors
of the chief executive of the Company) owned interests or short

positions in the Shares and underlying shares recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO or interests or short positions required to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and as
far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this directors’ report,
at least 25% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company is
held by the public pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands (being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated), which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Tax Relief

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The customer base of the Company mainly consists of state-owned
energy companies, power generation companies, global commodity
trading companies. Customers of the Company also include other
general customers who engage us for specific services on a service-
order basis. Our suppliers include port companies, sampling
equipment companies, third-party inspection providers and landlords.

In the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s total cost of sales.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number
of issued Shares had any interest in the five largest customers or five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Other than the financial risk management objective and policies as
disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, some significant
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. They
are not exhaustive and there may be other additional risks and
uncertainties which are now unknown or immaterial to the Group but
could become material in future.

Our business and operations involve certain risks and uncertainties,
many of which are beyond our control. Management oversees the
risks and mitigate them by implementing robust business processes.
These risks can be broadly categorized as (1) business and industry
risk; (2) economic and political risk; (3) financial risk; (4) people risk;
and (5) operational risk.

Business and Industry Risk

The Group depends on a limited number of customers for a
substantial portion of our revenue and may not be able to successfully
maintain our business relationship with these customers. Our
expansion plans or future acquisitions may entail certain risks and
challenges.

Economic and Political Risk

The economic, political and social conditions of regions we operate
in could affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any slowdown in the global economy may affect the
demand for energy and commaodities and result in a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax
treatments, interest rate, foreign currency in the normal course of
business.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operations may be interrupted by the occurrence of
unexpected events like natural disasters, strikes, epidemics and
occupational hazards that may or may not be under the Group’s
control.
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Furthermore, the widespread community transmission of COVID-19
may cause disruption in supply chain, and interruption of business
operations.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

Our business relationship with our customers has proven to be
lasting. We believe that impartial and high-quality testing and
inspection are critically important for our customers. To better
serve the business needs from our customers, we are dedicated to
delivering reliable testing and inspection services supported by quality
control and operational measures consistent with statutory and
industrial standards, which are strictly followed by our employees. In
the meantime, we have an experienced sales and marketing team in
each of our service centers to better understand and serve the needs
of our customers.

We generally maintain a list of approved suppliers. We review this
list on an annual basis and consider whether any supplier should
be removed or added. In selecting a new supplier, we generally
consider whether the supplier candidate has passed the relevant
quality authentication, obtained the relevant production permit, and/
or received favorable recommendations. We typically maintain at least
two suppliers for each type of our major equipment, instruments or
required services to minimize potential disruption of our operation,
maintain sourcing stability and secure competitive prices from
suppliers.

Employees

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,657 employees in total.
The Group’s employee compensation includes base salary, bonuses
and cash subsidies. In general, the Group determines employee
compensation based on each employee’s performance, qualifications,
position and seniority. Other agreed employee benefits includes
pension scheme, medical insurance, on-job training, education
subsidy and other social security and paid leaves stipulated under the
relevant jurisdiction of places of operation. The Company maintained
good relationship with its employees.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme as well as the Share Award
Scheme as the incentives to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme are set out
in “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” sections of
this directors’ report and notes 33 and 34 to the financial statements
respectively. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which were exempted from
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed
in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements, of which certain of transactions
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but were
exempted from disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
Details are disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

We uphold high standards and meet relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances when conducting our business.

For the year, the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Company in all
material respects.

Significant Subsequent Events after the
Year

On 3 February 2021, a subsidiary of the Company has entered
into the sale and purchase agreements with the vendors for the
acquisition of the target companies located in the PRC. The principal
activities of the target companies are providing environmental
monitoring and testing services including ecological monitoring, soil
testing, environmental technology consultation and assessment as
well as carbon neutrality. The transaction has been completed up to
the date of this report. Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
announcement dated 3 February 2021.

Release of the Pledge of Shares by

the Controlling Shareholders, Loan
Agreement with Covenant Relating to
Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders and Redemption of Note

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 30 August 2018,
on 30 August 2018, the Company and Wan Tai Investment Limited
(“Wan Tai”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CCBI International
(Holdings) Limited), among others, entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Company conditionally agreed to issue a secured guaranteed note (the
“Note”) with an aggregate principal amount of HK$68,000,000 with
interest rate of 10% per annum to Wan Tai, and Wan Tai conditionally
agreed to subscribe for the Note from the Company.
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Subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedents, the
Company agreed to issue to Wan Tai by way of private placement,
and Wan Tai agreed to subscribe for the Note from the Company, in
the principal amount up to HK$68,000,000, which will mature on the
maturity date (the “Maturity Date”), being the first anniversary of the
issue date (the “Issue Date”, which is a date within five business days
after the conditions precedent having satisfied or waived, or such
other date as the Company and Wan Tai may agree in writing).

Subject to the prior written approval by the holder of the Note,
the Company may, on the anniversary of the Issue Date, request
extension of the Maturity Date to no later than the second anniversary
or the third anniversary, as the case may be, of the Issue Date.

The Note shall bear interest on its outstanding principal amount from
the Issue Date to the Maturity Date, at the rate of 10% per annum,
due and payable in arrear every six months by the Company from the
Issue Date.

To secure the indebtedness and liabilities of the Company to Wan
Tai under the Note, each of Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Hawk Flying Investment Holdings Limited and Swan
Stone Investment Holding Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) charged 26,090,000 Shares, 35,550,000 Shares
and 49,290,000 Shares, respectively, on an aggregate basis being
110,930,000 Shares representing approximately 27.73% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 August 2018, in favour
of Wan Tai.

For as long as the Note remains outstanding, if the Collateral
coverage ratio (the “Collateral Coverage Ratio”, as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2018) falls below
2.0, each of the Controlling Shareholders agrees and undertakes to
charge additional Shares in favour of Wan Tai so that the Collateral
Coverage Ratio will increase to no less than 2.5.

In addition to the aforementioned share charges, each of Mr. Li Xiangli
(“Mr. Li”) and Ms. Zhang Aiying (“Ms. Zhang”) provides guarantee in
favour of Wan Tai in respect of the obligations of the Company, the
Controlling Shareholders, Mr. Li and Ms. Zhang under the transaction
documents (the “Transaction Documents”, as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2018).
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Pursuant to the Transaction Documents, each of the Controlling
Shareholders undertakes to Wan Tai that, among others, (a) Mr. Li
shall remain as a Director, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board; or (b) unless with the prior written consent of Wan Tai, the
aggregate number of the charged Shares shall at all times be not less
than 110,930,000 (the "Undertakings").

As disclosed in the Company's 2019 Annual Report, the Company
and the holders of the Note have executed a supplemental
deed, pursuant to which the Maturity Date has been extended
to 28 September 2020. As at 30 June 2020, the outstanding
principal amount of the Note is HK$45,150,000 (equivalent to
RMB40,728,000).

On 21 July 2020, the principal, together with the interest, were
fully repaid by the Company to Wan Tai. The Charge was released
accordingly on 14 August 2020. The Undertakings ceased after
the Note has been redeemed and all the secured obligations in
the Transaction Documents have been fully paid, performed or
discharged to the satisfaction of Wan Tai.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman), Mr. WANG
Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the
Group and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of
the Group for the year. It also discussed with the management of
the Group and reviewed the financial controls, risk management and
internal control system of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards for the year have been audited by Deliotte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deliotte”), the auditor of the Company.
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Auditor

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 27
September 2019, Ernst & Young was removed and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the 2021 AGM.

The Publication of the Annual Report

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company’s website at www.leontest.com and the website of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Yang Rongbing
Executive Director

PRC, 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R S

Deloitte.

To The Shareholders Of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 79 to 229,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (“IESBA Code”). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

V- <
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REESEE

RSt ET S EARERMINBEXHE - RAHAH
RAVBHREANBTRAERNER - ZFHERE
HEAMBHRRBEETEALIEAERNERT
EITRER - WA THZSFRREHERNER -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

BREITER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B SN IR R ERF I

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position and
the involvement of subjective judgement and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL”)
of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

B E SR FIAZ REF AR SMREAFE - RER
BHRUFAHEEE 2 FEMBIRABEEAN - BRENE
EEERHREHRZESRKFIAZ B EERKX ([FAHRE
EREX )Ry REB LG R EREMLET

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounting to approximately RMB108,459,000, which
represented approximately 25% of total assets of the
Group. As disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s allowance for lifetime ECL on
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 amounting to
approximately RMB3,560,000.

R20205F12 A31 B EXEZBESRUFIBFHEI/AR
¥ 108,459,000 7 ' hEEBEEEMREL25% - WERE I
WERMTA4FTH TR - M20206F12A31H - EXEESE
Wikaz 2 BiEEERARBLO R AR 3,560,000 7T

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EAWETNAEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

BIVERNE 5 RUGRREF SR F 81

° Understanding the management estimation on the
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables;
THREREAAESRUGRREERAEE

° Testing the accuracy of the past due status of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the trade
receivables aging report with the relevant invoices for
service income; and
HERUAIF 202065 12 A 31 A B 5 fE WK I8 /) 161 £
BEREEREY - FEREE S RIIERRE & &R
TE B L EERA R RIS IMA R ¢
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Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B SR R E S

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of the trade receivables individually
for significant debtors and based on provision matrix
for remaining debtors. Significant debtors are assessed
individually by considering internal credit rating, historical
credit loss adjust for any forward-looking information.
Remaining debtors are assessed by past due status for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region and historical
default rate) and based on the Group’s historical default rates
and calibrated to adjust for forward-looking information. The
impairment assessment of trade receivables involves high
degree of estimation uncertainty.

BRI HRRMT 4P HE  EXEERE@EMIMHME
REBABERBEERERFIRERS AL E S RIKIE
ZEHEHEERLAeH  EABEBABZBERABEE
R BEREEBRRISEMFTEEER T LAAREMRIGT
i - FIMEBABZBAFROUBRERN (AR RE £ &
WEE D) 2 TRAREFHESENBRMRRIREEEEE
SRR - WABKRIEAFRAEEER - B ERIHK
HEVRER S K= E bt AT

Net amount of impairment losses under expected credit loss
model of RMB1,098,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE - CHRAZEHEEREARR
B NREERFREMARE1,098,0007T °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETTNAEERRETSEE

o Assessing the reasonableness of management’s

estimation and judgement including their identification
of trade receivables, which are assessed individually
and the reasonableness of management’s groupings
of customer segments that have similar loss patterns
in the provision matrix according to geographical
region and internal credit rating of respective
customers based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;
FHEE IR E AR R HE (BREEBRERF G E S
JEWHIR) R & IR K B I B 7 RE 18 1A AE FeE 4R R 3
EEDHAFRUBRRANETF D AES RERHK
MEEREEBN TRAETNEREPNAREE
FTAREYEE R FIET R S IR

° Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of
expected loss rates applied in each category by
reference to the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information on different past due
status of trade receivables in the provision matrix; and
FR2EERBEAUREBREETE S RKFIEN TR
BEERNE R BRENERAEEER - AFHER
BHEFIEANFEBRRNMANAEL : &

° Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation
to the impairment assessment.

FHEBRREENFTE



Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Del Rosario, Faith Corazon.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e Em R EMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARETT ARBFIT
Revenue 'ON 5 573,990 396,456
Cost of sales SHERAR (330,596) (210,249)
Gross profit EF 243,394 186,207
Other income and other gains and losses HUAA R E AUz % 518 7 13,792 7,230
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHRE (15,207) (15,131)
Administrative expenses S iiba (133,213) (110,916)
Impairment losses under expected EREEBRAENTHRERS  F58
credit loss model, net (1,098) (786)
Other expenses Hinfk (11,122 (11,779)
Finance costs AR 8 @,217) (6,864)
Share of loss of an associate B EREIGEE 20 - (1,061)
Profit before tax BLATR 92,329 46,900
Income tax expense FTSRiF > 9 (17,471) (18,143)
Profit for the year FRFE 10 74,858 28,757
Attributable to: AT B IR
Owners of the Company RATHREA 50,267 24,171
Non-controlling interests FEPERR MR 24,591 4,586
74,858 28,757

RIS A R A » 2020 FEHKE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

80

mermk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

H2mWm*k ()

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g AR¥T R ARBEFIT
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hith 2w (%) s -
Item that will not be reclassified BB EE BB -
to profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investment in equity BRAnBEFAEMZAKE
instrument at fair value through other MRATEREN A BEESE
comprehensive income 22 (812) (2,188)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss REEE R A g BT A 2 1B m B -
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINERSRE R 25
foreign operations (2,719) 401
Other comprehensive expense FREMZEMEY - NKRAEH
for the year, net of income tax (3,531) (1,787)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZAERRLE 71,327 26,970
Attributable to: AT SR
Owners of the Company RATHREA 48,068 22,187
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 23,259 4,783
71,327 26,970
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary ~ AAFEBEEZRZEA
equity holders of the Company EhERER
Basic AR 14 RMB12.59 cents  RMB6.04 cents
AE¥1259% ARM6.045
Diluted B 14 RMB1259cents  RMB6.04 cents
AR¥ 12595 AR#6.045
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBARRR

At 31 December 2020

202012 A31H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 ARET T ARETTT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NS 15 149,545 140,444
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 30,679 37,140
Investment properties EME 17 18,169 19,443
Goodwil S 18 17,607 18,445
Intangible assets mpEE 19 3,059 3,807
Equity investment at fair value through BEAREBE AHM
other comprehensive income FHEWS A RERE 22 - 812
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 29 520 296
Prepayments and other receivables TR I8 N B e Y5k IE 24 10,410 5,803
229,989 226,190
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIE 23 108,459 94,703
Prepayments, other receivables and TEFIE - B EUGRIE KX
other assets Hih &= 24 21,414 16,761
Pledged deposits BEEAER 25 784 823
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 25 78,875 76,008
209,532 188,295
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables =) INE/¢E 26 35,259 45,456
Contract liabilities aHaE 27 3,983 3,384
Other payables and accruals E b RIE R EETIE B 28 51,580 42,820
Borrowings EEA 30 25,000 55,134
Tax payable FEARTL N 9,757 1,492
Lease liabilities MEAE 31 13,343 13,682
Total current liabilities MENVEEAERE 138,922 161,968
Net current assets REBEEFE 70,610 26,327
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 300,599 252,517

PRSI AR AT o 2020 FEHE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e AR R ()

At 31 December 2020
7R2020F12 A31H

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g ARETT ARETTT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings EE 30 8,830 8,139
Deferred tax liabilities REBIBEE 29 3,874 5,160
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 13,170 17,948
25,874 31,247
Net assets BESE 274,725 221,270
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital &N 32 131 131
Reserves {5 36 250,974 202 822
Equity attributable to owners NAREER AEGREE
of the Company 251,105 222,953
Non-controlling interests R 23,620 (1,683)
Total equity T AARR 274,725 221,270

FT7I9ZE 220 EHERE WS HRER B 142021 F 3 A 31
AEESHETIRETE WARATALTRERSR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 229 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

31 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: E

LI Xiangli YANG Rongbing
ZEF LS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EBEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TMERDEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLTERARE
Shares held
Share for share Exchange Non-
Share Capital Statutory option award FVTOCI  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve scheme reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RhER  RAAEE E
BRE e RARM2E it ] FER
Re  ERRRE  tERR fif Bt GENEE i E fit BE EniE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MRETT  ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETn ARETR
(Note g) (Note b)
(ita) (Fitb)
At 1 January 2019 101951 A1A 131 9R.845 19329 2180 - - 1838 85,561 201,884 (4893 196,991
Proft for the year ERfE - - - = - - - 24,11 2417 4586 28757
Other comprehensie [eroense)income.~~~ FREHZE(ER)
fortheyer e - - - - - 018 0 - 198 197 (1787
Tota comprehensive (expense] income Em3EFR ME
forthe year a5 - - - - - 2189 24 A1 2,187 4783 26970
Fina 2018 chidend decaed and ped BERREAH018E
fote 13 RHRA(H) - - - - - - - B00) B0 - B0
Fouity-seled share option WERGENERE
expenses (ofe 33 Bz (%) - - - 84 - - - - 84 - 8t
Accistion of aciione interest n WENRLT N
asubsidiary note 38) Ea(En) - 3 - - - - - - 3 (3,366) (3317
Partl dsposelof asubsicires pote %) AL ENBRZ (%) - 20 - - - - - - 210 1137 1347
Transferfom retaned profts REfEER - - 426 - - - - (£.262) - - -
Deemed contrbuton fom non-conyoling—— BEERHBATHI AR
Interest arisig fom loan floma ERETEEY
non-controling nterest of a subsiday HihiERE
note 30) (Fsa0) - 789 - - - - - - 789 046 143
At31 December 2019 B019E1231R 131 93,883 23591 304 - (2188 2082 102470 20953 (1,683 21210
Proft for the year ERAE - - - - - - - 50,267 50,267 24501 74858
Other compreensiie expense ERERRERY
fortheyear - - - - - By - A ICE . B X |
Tota comprehiensive (expense) income ERREFD A
forthe year a8 - - - - - (12 (1,387) 50,267 48,068 8259 1327
Final 2019 dhidend declered and pad BERREANN10E
ote 13 RERE(RH3) - - - - - - - (15,00 (15,00 - (15,000
Equiy-seted share opton HEskEnERE
axpenses note 39) i (M) - - - 0 - - - - 0 - VAl
Shares purchased for share avard R b
scheme ote 34) R (BEaa) - - - - (149 - - - (5,143 - (149
Transfer fiom retaned profts %mﬂ}%% - - 3441 - - - - (3.441) - - -
Captl contuton fomnon-contoling B
Interestof asuosicry #fﬁxﬁx%é - - - - - - - - - 2,044 204
At 31 December 2020 R00ERASE 181 93,883 21,032 3251 (5,143 3,000) 655 134,296 251,105 260 214725
FETERBIEIRERAR « 2020 FERE 83
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
meEaBEx (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

Notes:

(@)

The amounts represent for (i) the share premium of the issued share
capital of the Company; (i) the difference between the nominal values
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the share capital
of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to
the reorganisation of the Company in prior years; (iii) the difference
between the fair value of the capital injections from non-controlling
shareholders and the carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable
to the non-controlling interests; (iv) the difference between the
consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests;
and (v) the deemed contribution from non-controlling interest
determined by the difference between the principal amount and the
present value of the other borrowings.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, each of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC shall
set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
reserve. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
board of directors of these PRC established subsidiaries and by the
relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, RMBS3,441,000 (2019:
RMB4,262,000) were transferred from retained profits to the statutory
reserves.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before tax A A 92,329 46,900
Adjustments for: BB TS EELFE
Share of loss of an associate JEEEE e EE = 1,061
Gain on disposal of an associate SR E AW = (3,772)
Finance costs BB RA 4,217 6,864
Waive of interest payable due to AR E T SR AR 2 A FE S LS
a non-controlling interest = (257)
Depreciation of property, Y - BERERENITE
plant and equipment 20,493 17,295
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEMITE 12,864 13,057
Depreciation of investment properties WEYENTE 1,274 1,274
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEEH 637 683
Loss on disposals of items of HEYE  BENMEEEE
property, plant and equipment, net HEE - R 152 90
Change in fair value of financial assets BRARBEFAER
at fair value through profit or loss NEeRIEENAABEEZD (800) (656)
Impairment of trade receivables, net E S EBFIERRIE - F5E 1,098 1,106
Reversal of impairment of financial assets FHAE MR YRR
included in other receivables and REMEENSREE
other assets, net RERE - FEE - (320)
Equity-settled share option expense DEREE B RN 227 844
Operating cash flows before movementsin =~ ZEBESEBATHNKLELE S RE
working capital 132,491 84,169
Increase in trade receivables H 5 U GRIE L N (15,025) (36,839)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, TERTFRIA ~ Eofth JEUCRIA 2
other receivables and other assets H & E (GEm) m (11,206) 6,181
(Decrease) increase in trade payables E S FRIE G A) 180 (10,655) 24,783
Increase in contract liabilities AHaEEN 599 1,005
Increase in other payables and accruals E b e 5B K FERTIE B 1 0 15,992 5,818
Cash generated from operations KEELENRS 112,126 85,117
Income tax paid BB (9,910) (14,549)
Net cash from operating activities L RE TSR e F R 102,216 70,568
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
meRenER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

86

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 ARET T ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE% - MiE RRELAEE
and deposits paid for purchase of property,  ¥12% - HE R RESZ LS
plant and equipment (30,737) (43,411)
Deposit paid for purchase of land BE iy BfHRe (8,300) -
Payment for intangible assets EREENR - (89)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME -« BENEE
plant and equipment FriSsR18 5,910 1,386
Disposals of financial assets at fair value HERA R BERAEZED
through profit or loss TREEE 800 27,656
Proceed for disposal of an associate HE— MBS S EME A 20 6,200 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net WEEFT B A A  FNBRIEER
of cash acquired MR 37 (7,592) (19,585)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits RIREEAER - 400
Placement of pledged deposits GFABEBER - (823)
Payment for rental deposits YNHEERS - (250)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEFAREF5 (33,719) (34,716)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Contributions from non-controlling interest IR R T E 2,044 -
New bank loans and other borrowings HLIRITE R R HALERK 43 50,000 35,000
Repayment of bank loans and EEBRITERREAMER
other borrowings 43 (79,680) (47,307)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARE 43 (11,543) (12,282)
Interest paid EAFE 43 (5,223) (7,330)
Dividend paid AR E (15,000) (3,000)
Purchase of shares for the purpose B Gh REETEIEE 2 kD
of share award scheme 34 (5,143) -
Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries &84 & FfE A &IPS 208 38 - 1,347
Acquisition of additional interest W BEH B A R A BB IME 2
in a subsidiary 38 = 8,317)
Net cash used in from financing activities BB EBATAMSEESFE (64,545) (36,889)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH BHERBESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B OGRL) FEE 4,022 (1,037)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FONRERASEZEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 76,008 76,848
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  YMEFE RSB F/E - JBEE (1,155) 197
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNESRESEEY
END OF YEAR 78,875 76,008

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 29 July 2015. The registered office
address of the Company is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and
the principal places of business are Unit F, 16/F, Neich Tower,
128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and Building
No. 78, Zhuyuan Road, No 12 District, Tianzhu Free Trade
Zone, Beijing, China. The Company’s shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 12 July
2016.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

e AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

—REHR

PR BBRBIERERAB(TARE DA
—RR2015F7R20B R =2 B &t
M ERRBERETAA - XRF M
% = R M Ik A Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands * M E& 2 A
BEREBTELTITE 128 E KE161EF
ERFRIERARL G S RBEZEE K125
Br785% 18 - "R B2016F7 H12
AERERMERXSMAERAR LM -
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MR RIFE M 46 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

2.

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
and the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3

Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature
or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

90

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

D

2. Application of New and Amendments

to International

Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not

yet effective
The Group has not early

amendments to IFRSs that
effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to
IFRS Standards

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited

applied the following new and
have been issued but are not yet

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Covid-19 Related Consessions*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current’
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020°

» Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations
so that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued by the IASB in March
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead of the
International Accounting Standards Committee’s
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in September
2010);

° add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC
21 Levies, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
instead of Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination;
and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to
business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

2.

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-related rent
concession is a lease maodification. The practical expedient
only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
IFRS 16 Leases if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance as the Group does not
intend to apply the practical expedient

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Application of New and Amendments 2. FERHFET R &IERT B Bl BR B

to International Financial Reporting B EZERD ([(EBRE K HRE

Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued) ZRI)]1) (&)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not EEME R ERIET REBIICHA

yet effective (continued) BRE} ISR EZERI) (&)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities (B EFIERI)E1HHEET BB

as Current or Non-current B B 2 15ET

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance ZEEI R EBEERREEZREA

on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least BiE&m D+ @A WERIREEE REI

twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities Bal - LB E s EA MBI IR - &

as current or non-current, which: o

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current J FIRAEEERSEARTFENRE
or non-current should be based on rights that are A B A RENIERE - B8
in existence at the end of the reporting period. BRI

Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

0] the classification should not be affected by 0] ZOBEITEREE121EA
management intentions or expectations to NEEBENEB S IBAIA
settle the liability within 12 months; and FE R

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance with (ii) fin] 5% 7 T LA 8 <7 22 55 & Al
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are & A ERAREL A H
met at the end of the reporting period, even if THRHREHFE G - &
the lender does not test compliance until a later FRmERKRERTE BBAK
date; and HRIBERTIATE &

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the J EEWBEREBGR  TREFA
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by RESRERTRAGHNERTA
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, ETEE  IEEEREER(RERE
these terms do not affect its classification as current FFERNER M T A £
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option EEREEERARTITER - Z
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32 LA TEHES B ARE NI
Financial Instruments: Presentation. MENIER 2 o

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at RIBASEBR2020F 12 A31 HHKREE

31 December 2020, the application of the amendments will BE ERAZSEIIUIT2ERENS>E

not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities. REBMAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies

3.1

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

RS R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated

financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain

purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss

as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS

19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Basic of preparation of consolidated 3. MRESHUBHRENEERE
financial statements and significant REEER (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAREIHE(E)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions REEHEEWIE (1B)
(continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
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below); TXEETHEGR)
. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified IR IR BB B 7 5 22 B ) 38

as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUSs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on acquisition
of an associate is described below.

Ry

e IS ER R YA (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

MBBRNEERE

REFTBE (&)

3.2

EXEEE (&)
BE (&)

SREARNS  BEEWOEE
FEHIR & OF R0 157 R R T 2 s O AR
SEXReELEM([ReELE
2 ]) (HMeELEMAR) - BN
AREEM S BB ENRERE
METRNEE DR ERL -

EARMENReEEBENM (IR
SEABMMER) eFFETHE
B SN B RERABELA
B 1135 R (B FF BB A 2 4 3 1T R (EDR)
Ao R mESHRNERBmMELN
HEME  BHOEBENRSES
BA(HRESEABEMBR]) RZTR
EHARATEITRE RS o B AU
SHEONEREE  AREEBES
AR A ENREE -
HgmzENANSBEERAEN
LRI D E R B (KRS E A B
R R EMEE -

EHERRRSELSENSIRESE
AEMER AR SEEEM
K- AENEGSESRETELE
BReBRtELRN - AEEEE
ReEEEMN (FIRSELEEMNER
WHIRSEAEMN) AN EBSE -
ENESEERMEEER (R
SEABEM)NBEBEEAERREMNR
SEEBNBY (SBESELESBMNA
AETE -

AEBMERNBER ZEEMELD
A EABERR T XEHH

PR R AR AR - 2020 FERE

103



N,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in
net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal
of the relevant associate.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a
bundle of services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an

asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
service.

106 China Leon Inspection Holding Limited « Annual Report 2020

UGSV BBRNEERE
REFBER (8)

3.2

EFEAUA

B (3R ERENEER - NEHE
FERUA - B E X B £/
BAARTSH [ 12514 | 3R T B P HE

A
=7
an ©

[EHE 1 — R AARERSS (S —HLAR
1) — R IR BUHRR OB HEAR 75

IR RER - MMmENA T
Hh—EE%E - BIRA I Z2RTEE
WEMRBARNE EOERB M
FFEIERR

. BEAEERELD  TEPRKR
S FEA AL EELFTIRH
B A s

. AEBHBEHRZIRIE—
HEE  ZBERNAKEE
2B BN R PR - X

. REBMBEHLREEEAR
SEBEEHARAENEE - B
AEBMEZSBETKBELD
HRIREB AT

BRI WAREFEGRERSEZE
Tl O By R B AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cornti'ﬁue?d)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or after the
date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under
IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis
when the Group reasonably expects that the effects on
the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cornti'ﬁue?d)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

Basic of preparation of consolidated 3. MUSESMBEBRRNEERE
financial statements and significant REEER (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAGTEEK(E)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee PEEFEBATAA
Allocation of consideration to components of a BREDEEE LN D
contract
For a contract that contains a lease component e s—EREAKIBY AR
and one or more additional lease or non-lease — Ak Z EEIINEESIEHER
components, the Group allocates the consideration in RER S - RIS e E R E AR
the contract to each lease component on the basis of BomEEEREER RIEEEAN
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component HomEBEBEREN  #EaHNFH
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease RETCSHEENID 2EETH
components. # -
Non-lease components are separated from lease FEEH D HEEEL D HHA - WK
component and are accounted for by applying other RAEAERZEEAR -

applicable standards.

Right-of-use assets EREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEENMKABRTE

. the amount of the initial measurement of the . HEBBEMVILHESE
lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the . M EIA B BBk 2 BT {E M M (E
commencement date, less any lease incentives MEENK - BERSUE
received; EEBR

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; o AEEEENERVIREE
and PR R

HE R RRIEIRER AR « 2020 FERE 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS ER R YA (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Basic of preparation of consolidated 3. HmARESMBBRRNEERE

financial statements and significant REEER (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAREIHE(E)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFERATA ()
Lease liabilities HEBE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group REERKRAH  AEBEZZBR
recognises and measures the lease liability at the NWHEENZRERRLTEHE
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at BE - NFEMREN Aiﬁfﬁﬁ% * i
that date. In calculating the present value of lease MERENMEEUETE - AIASE
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing EFERHEERBBE Eﬁﬂ’ﬁa =183 F
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest KiHE o

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include: MENRBLRE :

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed . .EH (BREEMNEE
payments) less any lease incentives receivable; M) BEMBERBEES

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group . REFGEBERERES
under residual value guarantees; NS5

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the . REBEBERETESTITER
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the BEEENTEE : &
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if o WA R AR E B TR
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an BREKIERE - BIFFAKRLE
option to terminate the lease. HEMNSIK -

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are REBBEE HEABRERNE

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. EEERHEENFIELAZE -

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate KEIE’\\ R E B E NS EE

line item on the consolidated statement of financial BE27AEEEAE -

position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IS ER R YA (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

AT ESVBBRRNEERE
REFBER ()

Basic of preparation of consolidated 3.
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAREHBER(E)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor REREERHAN
Classification and measurement of leases HENDERE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

AEBESEEANEESBEAR
BEHERKLEHE - EHEENK
BELREMAREEMBEMARN

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the Fir 7 2 B o e B o R 4m A AE A B -
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. Al ZEAEAEBEAMENE - TG
other leases are classified as operating leases. HEMmEERREALENE -

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration
in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

LLease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.
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Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. For shares that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the shares granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to capital reserve. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to capital reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (‘otinued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share purchased for share award scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased from
the open market for share award scheme, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for
share award scheme and deducted from total equity.

The fair value of services received from directors and
employees determined by reference to the fair value
of award shares granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based
on the Group’s estimate of award shares that will
ultimately vest, with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve.

At the time when the award shares are vested, the
difference on the amounts previously recognised in
shares held for share award scheme and the amount
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities. For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition due
to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary difference arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modification that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the provision of services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and leasehold improvements in the course
of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

AT ESVBBRRNEERE
REFBER ()

3.2

BEREFHEE (K)
REY=E (&)

1R R B R A 2 K
ATRET A B R B 8 T
RT3 B 0 LB - 1L
R UGS SR (1R
e ) 5 9 BB B B AR T A 0
S ) ML R R B
Pt AdERS -

BEEE
EHEGAETEEE

ERESNERAERFHNER
BEDRRABRRTHEREMR
AHREEBBAR - BRAERFH
MEBTVEEBHIREREENE
T R A F HARERR - AT RIS
FREBHETDENEREMRET
6 MEMAGHESNFERR
AT EEARR -

B R IRERIEIRER A o 2020 FERE

125



e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CUG for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or
group of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUSs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
(“CGU”") or a group of cash-generating units (“CGUS"))
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit
(“CGU”") or a group of cash-generating units (“CGUS”))
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated

financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;

and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business

Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no

longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (‘otinued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income and gains and losses” line item in profit
or loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated

financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
or designated as FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other income and gains and losses” line

item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition.
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Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
and the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;
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Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3. Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The Group uses a
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

3.

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables
and other payables and accruals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the trade
receivables individually for significant debtors and based
on provision matrix for the remaining debtors. Significant
debtors are assessed individually by considering internal credit
rating, historical credit loss adjust for any forward-looking
information. Remaining debtors are assessed by past due
status for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region and historical
default rate) and based on the Group’s historical default rates
and calibrated to adjust for any forward-looking information.
The impairment assessment of trade receivables involves high
degree of estimation uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of lifetime ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in
note 44(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
RMB65,250,000 (2019: RMB43,458,000). Further details are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

A

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i)

5. Revenue 5.

EFEHBABRHA

with customers

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Type of services fRigER
Testing services TR AR 7% 358,198 254,282
Surveying services 58 7F AR 1% 172,578 127,426
Witnessing and ancillary services B3 R EBIARTS 43,214 14,748
Total A&t 573,990 396,456
Geographical markets i & 135
Greater China (Note) RAEERE (FEE) 346,764 287,500
Singapore N 200,999 79,162
Other countries/regions HEK, e 26,227 29,794
Total =18 573,990 396,456
Timing of revenue recognition W AREEL AR
A point in time e Gk 573,990 396,456
Revenue from contracts EEAHWA
with customers
External customers SN P 573,990 396,456
Intersegment sales DEBEIHE - 8,646
573,990 405,102
Intersegment adjustments DEE AR R
and eliminations - (8,646)
Total A&t 573,990 396,456

Note:  Greater China comprises the mainland of PRC, Hong

Kong Special Administrative Region and Macau

Special Administrative Region.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Revenue (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Rendering of services

The Group performs analytical tests for the quality
and quantity of energy and commodities and issues
testing certificates or reports after completion of the
on-site preparation. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon i) completion of testing services and/or
i) issuance of testing certificate. A contract liability is
recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group provides surveying services and witnessing
and ancillary services on-site. Service reports are
issued after services rendered. The performance
obligation is satisfied upon i) completion of provision of
services and/or i) issuance of service reports, if any. A
contract liability is recognised for advance payments
received for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised.

All services provided by the Group are for periods
of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

6. Operating Segment

Information reported to the executive directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the

“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment focuses on revenue analysis by geographic

location of customers. No other discrete financial information

is provided other than the Group’s results and financial

position as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures,

major customers and geographical information are presented.

5.

6.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

6. Operating Segment (continued) 6. ReEDI(E)
Geographical information 15 & R
The Group’s operations are located in the Greater China and REBREBLAN KR ER RGN
overseas.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BRAAEEIINSEFIAFBANERTHZ
customers is presented based on the location of the service iRt RIS T E 23R - AR AEEIE
provided. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is MEEEMER DIREENEUE S W -
presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from Non-current

external customers

HNEEFBA FRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019 2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTT ARETT AREFTT
Greater China APER 346,764 287,500 177,878 159,452
Singapore s 200,999 79,162 39,222 41,330
Others Hity 26,227 29,794 11,492 18,497
573,990 396,456 228,592 219,279

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer
During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue generated

from one of the Group’s customers — Customer A, accounting
for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Other Income and Other Gains and 7.

Losses

An analysis of other income and other gains and losses is as

follows:

H AW A BUR: EAth W 25 2 8518

HA WA LA R Boftb W zs MBS IR EO DA IA T

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income RITHEUA 70 297
Value-added tax refund BIREIEEN 1,184 -
Government subsidies (Note) ERT B (B sE) 11,516 1,114
Rental income HE WA 1,213 1,438
Others EAh, 1,026 482
15,009 3,331
Other gains and losses Hipl = R EE
Change in fair value of financial BARBER ABZRN
assets at FVTPL (note 21) TREEARBEZE (MFE21) 800 656
Gain on disposal of an associate SR & b TS
(note 20) (FFzE20) - 3,772
Loss on foreign exchange HNEEBE SRR 1R
difference (1,964) (512)
Loss on disposals of items HEWE - BER&E
of property, plant and equipment B HWEE (152) (90)
Others Hit 99 73
(1,217) 3,899
13,792 7,230

Note:  Amount represents the Group’s entitlement of government

Bifet - ZeEENEEREABTEDEREE

subsidies such as COVID-19-related subsidies of
RMB10,501,000, refund of value-added tax paid pursuant to
the relevant PRC regulation and subsidy for high technology
companies.

FEAS IR AT B (DI B SR = 102
B AR¥10,601,0007T ~ EHEETR
B R R A R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

8. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE R A

BVERAR ST
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Interest on bank loans and RITERNEMERFIE

other loans 2,777 5,427
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE 1,440 1,437
4,217 6,864

9. Income Tax Expense

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is
subject to income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits. The tax on the dividend distributed by a
subsidiary of RMB50,000,000 (2019: RMB20,000,000) in the
PRC has been provided at the rate of 5% (2019: 10%) during
the year.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to income
tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective taxable
income, except for certain subsidiaries, which have been
identified as “high and new technology enterprises” and were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore is
subject to income tax at the rate of 17.0% on the estimated
assessable profits.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Income Tax Expense (continued) 9. FiSBipxX (&)
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEFIT
Current income tax BEAFT1S AR
- The PRC - 9,253 8,415
— Other jurisdictions - Hi e EEERE 7,228 1,067
Withholding tax of dividends R BB B A R AT 0 IR AR B A9 TR0
distributed by a PRC subsidiary 2,500 2,000
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR
- The PRC -7 - 1,844
18,981 13,326
Deferred tax (credit) charge (note 29) IEFEFIE (%) 2 (FIFE29) (1,510) 4,817
Tax charge for the year FAFIAZ H 17,471 18,143

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

FAMBRAXRGEERREMEE
Wan Rk AE AT AE SRR T

2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Profit before tax 750 B A 92,329 46,900
Income tax charge at the statutory %2 25% RIATE TSI AL KA T &
income tax rate of 25% B PT1S T s 23,082 11,725
Effect of the preferential FrigiEERENTE
income tax rate (8,460) (7,628)
Effect of different tax rates applicable @ A REEM Al ARE R £ L H
to subsidiaries operating for WEAF TR ENTE
other jurisdictions (2,964) (856)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K IERRISE BN ISHE 6,487 5,060
Utilisation of tax loss previously B < IR R TIBEGE
not recognised (1,039) (1,483)
Tax effect of expense not deductible  NAIEIIFL AR F X (RIS E
for tax purpose 4,080 5,907
Tax effect of income not taxable BEERB AR RENRETE
for tax purpose (3,743) (1,983)
Additional tax deduction for research  #J13% 5 3% % 22 B F09R 1
and development expenditure (1,227) (1,120)
Effect of withholding tax on the ANEEE R BB A &) AT kA
distributable profits of the EORERINETA=7
Group’s PRC subsidiaries 3,591 6,339
Effect of change in tax rate in REEHEBBMREEN
deferred tax liability arising RIEEHAGENTE
from withholding tax (2,336) -
Tax effect of share of result FEEEE D FENTIELE
of an associate - (265)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETRE - 1,844
Others Hith - 603
Income tax expense for the year FRFERAY 17,471 18,143

PRSI AR AT o 2020 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

10. Profit for the Year 10. FRFHE
The Group’s profit for the year has been arrived at after REBHFARFELHER (FFA) AT IR
charging (crediting): &I -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Auditor’s remuneration et Gl 1,600 1,681
Cost of services provided PR ARG I A AR 330,596 210,249
Depreciation of property, W - WENKERENTE
plant and equipment 20,493 17,295
Depreciation of investment properties & &EMEHNITE 1,274 1,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENITE 12,864 13,057
Amortisation of intangible assets | B EEH 637 6383
Research and development costs RN (G AHALR ) ¢
(included in other expenses):
— Current year expenditure - REERX 10,911 9,957
Employee benefit expenses EERMNMY (BIEES
(including directors’ and the chief REm THRABH ) -
executive’s remuneration):
— Wages and salaries -TEEF® 198,316 131,657
— Pension scheme contributions — RSB 5,827 14,347
— Welfare and other expenses - BF R EMFEY 38,577 30,080
— Equity-settled share option - R AE RN ERERS
expense 227 844
242,947 176,928
Impairment loss under ECL TEEMEEEAERIA TR
model, net: FERE - F5
— Impairment of trade receivables, - B o REIRFIRERE - T
net 1,098 1,106
- Reversal of impairment - BT AE M R GRIE
of financial assets WS REE
included in other BERE - FEE
receivables, net - (820)
1,098 786
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cornti'ﬁue?d)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, and the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

11. EERRSTHRASEHH

RIBCETMRBDRE (R REDDBER
FABERESTRABFMOT :

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Fees e 261 261
Other emoluments: HE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R RIEREFm
in kind S 4,016
Performance related bonuses EWRRATEAL 896 820
Equity-settled share option expense  LARE %S 45 & A BE AERER 2 91 390
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 301 289
5,372 5,515
5,633 5,776
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITESE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

FREBIIFRTESETZNNESE
By

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

ZHAO Hong AT 87 87
WANG Zichen TrER 87 87
LIU Hoi Keung I24E 87 87

261 261

No independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as director of the
Company.

EXAEBLIFRITESTN M
FREESARRESMEERS
FrsE S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F 12 A31 BILFE

11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director

11. EERRESTHABEEM (&)

(b) HITESE: FHUTEEREEST

and the chief executive BAB
2020 2020 F
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
BER By #EN Bifke
*Re HE fB IR E T
A AL 53 3 2y Fb
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT
Executive directors TES
LI Xiangli FiaH
(Chief executive) (RBTHAR) 1,193 411 - 68 1,672
LU Yi 253 1,309 253 - 68 1,630
Mr. Yang Bkt 1,043 86 91 152 1,372
ZHANG Aiying RER 539 146 - 13 698
4,084 896 91 301 5,372

The executive directors’ emolument shown above were

for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and the Group, which

also include the service for LI Xiangli as chief executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

Executive directors, a non-executive director

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

1. EERBSTHRAEHM (&)

(b) BTESE FWUTEEREST

and the chief executive (continued) BAE ()
2019 2019 F
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
A MR
AR B #EH RiE
FHE itk e itEl
Mz e FiX {5 Fries
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETFT UN:SS NS ARETFT
Executive directors YTES
LI Xiangli FmF
(Chief executive) (BRBTBAR) 1,194 411 - 88 1,693
LIUYi 23 1,199 176 - 88 1,463
Mr. Yang Bkt 1,122 87 390 75 1,674
ZHANG Alying RER 501 146 - 38 685
4,016 820 390 289 5515

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

FA ABEMNEFHEHTHRAERE
KRB R HBME 2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

RS R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

12.

Five Highest Paid Employees 12.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one (2019: two) directors of the Company, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

hEEEHHNES

FALEERRFMERREARR %
(20195 : MA)EF - BERFFHMNF
BEESIR X1 o JERRBEE I

ST ABRG TINE (2019F  =F)
= BME B EREFBIEEE ST

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEIERESFE
in kind 8,064 6,149
Performance related bonuses ERERTEAL 1,187 832
Pension scheme contributions RIRESETEIRR 356 341
9,607 7,322

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FAEA TSI FEZITIERSITERA

BN HFMEENAZNT

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH BB AR

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #7LZE 2,500,000 77T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 3,000,000 87T 1 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 3,500,000 47T 2 -
4 3

During the year, no non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees were granted share options.
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13.

14.

Dividends

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company
recognised as distribution during the year.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

9=

R T AR A AR Y B B A

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
2019 Final - RMB0.0375 (2019: 2019 FRHIRE — TiREBER
2018 final dividend — RMB0.0075) AR 0.0375 70 (20194 -
per ordinary share 2018 FARERE — AR®0.00757T) 15,000 3,000

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of RMB0.0375 (2019: RMBO0.0375) per share in an aggregate
amount of RMB15,000,000 (2019: RMB15,000,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 399,407,683 (2019: 400,000,000) in issue
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

14.

R EERE AR ESCERREE
F2020F 12 A AIEFEMNKRBREE
A R#0.03757C(20194F « AR¥0.0375
J0) e E A AR 15,000,000 (2019
& AR¥15,000,0007T) » W AFAERN
FEERRBFRE LHERFAESR -

BRER

EREXRBRNESBNHRARAR T RAER
RAEABRGFANBRERFADETER
A% b0 #E F 5 #399,407,683 1% (2019 4F :
400,000,000 %) & -

BREERNDRARFEREDEFTAA
EEFAFNBHESL - FIEFRASETT
BB AR e Em A a8 BIA
REt B ERELRBN LA L85 E N
HEBRERTERERSEARERE
EEERTHEBBIE IR -
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e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

14. Earnings Per Share (continued) 14. BREF (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BB T SEAEERERNREERT]

based on the following data:

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARMETTT

Earnings Eﬂ
Profit for the year attributable to HERERNFHEERFRAIIN
owners of the Company, $A RAIEB AR F AT HE

used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations

50,267 24,171

Number of shares

BRHEE
2020 2019
2020 20194

Shares Hﬁfﬁ
Weighted average number of EERERBIRAINEA
ordinary shares in issue BETE B INEF

during the year used in the
basic earnings per share
calculations

Effect of dilution — weighted AEESE T HE ML
average number of
ordinary shares:

399,407,683 400,000,000

— Share options - RERs - 162,301
Weighted average number of HEREERFFRAINERN
ordinary shares in issue E?é‘ﬂ AR hniE

during the year used in the
diluted earnings per share

calculations 399,407,683 400,162,301
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not AEEREEANRYERREART R
assume the exercise of all of the Company’s share options BRI T - RN ZEERENTT
because the exercise price of those options were higher than FER 2020 FESR MG B FHTE -

the average market price for shares for 2020.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not ATEESREERANRTEBREAATET
assume the exercise of certain of the Company’s share R EEITE - WA ZEERENTT
options because the exercise price of those options were FER2019FHERRHBFHETE -

higher than the average market price for shares for 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

15. W%¥ - BERRXE

Electronic
equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
%M HENE 2
e =] Rt £ IR ait
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT ARBTT AEBTT
31 December 2020 20205128318
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020: R2019F 12431 AR
00F1E18:
Cost B 86,138 25,385 70,528 24,940 849 207,840
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (10,465) (16,541) (32,063) (8,327) - (67,39)
Net carmying amount SHFE 75,673 8,044 38,465 16,613 849 140,444
At 1 January 2020, net of R200F1A18
acoumulated depreciation Thgsng 75,673 8,844 38,465 16,613 849 140,444
Addftions 7 107 6,991 20,381 4,304 2197 34,070
Disposals & - (2,641) (3.421) - - (6,062)
Depreciation provided during the year (note 10) ~ FRFERE (i 10) (4,085) (1,231) (11,649) (8,528) - (20,493)
Exchange realignment B8 - 3 1,306 242 - 1,586
At 31 December 2020, net of R200F128318
acoumulated depreciation Mg 71,695 12,001 45,082 17,721 3,046 149,545
At 31 December 2020; R200F12A318:
Cost s 86,245 29,717 85,723 29,185 3,046 233916
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (14,550) (17,716) (40,641) (11,464) - (84371)
Net carmying amount SHFE 71,695 12,001 45,082 17,724 3,046 149,545
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e MBRRE (F)

ated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BMERSZE (8)

(continued)
Electronic
equipment Construction Leasehold
Buildings Vehicles and others inprogress  improvements Total
5145k fia=s HEmz
BF k] Rt 1% & A%
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AEBFT ARBFT ARBFT
31 December 2019 2019128318
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019: R201BE12R31 AR
1951518
Cost mA 80,746 23,630 44110 6,940 13,09 168,521
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (5,763) (15,739) (24,781) - (3,562) (49,845)
Net carrying amount FEFE 74,983 7,891 19,329 6,940 9,533 118,676
At 1 January 2019, net of RO19F1A1A
accumulated depreciation MEZiTHE 74,983 7,891 19,329 6,940 9,533 118,676
Addttions AE - 2,254 24,170 4743 3,775 34,942
Disposals HE - (495) (981) - - (1,476)
Acquisition of subsiciaris (note 37) WEMBRR (W) - - 2732 - 2379 5111
Depreciation provided during the year note 10)  ERTERE (Hz10) (4,702 (808) (7,159 - 4632 (17,299)
Transfers b 530 - - (10,834 5449 -
Exchange realignment EEELS - 2 368 - 116 486
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019E12R318
accumulated depreciation MBZaHAE 75,673 8,844 38,465 849 16,613 140,444
At 31 December 2019: HO019F 1231 R :
Cost KA 86,138 25,385 70528 849 24,940 207,840
Accumulated depreciation Zithg (10,465) (16,541) (32,089) - 8.327) (67,396)
Net carrying amount RE¥E 75,673 8,844 38,465 849 16,613 140,444
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

Buildings with net carrying amounts RMB32,893,000
were pledged by the seller for certain purposes before the
transaction of purchase. The pledge has been released and
the application of building’s property ownership certificate is in
progress as of the date of this report.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings 4.75%
9.50% to 23.75%

9% to 31.67%

Shorter of lease term or
10% to 33.33%

Vehicles
Electronic equipment and others
Leasehold improvements

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

15. W%¥ - BERRXE (E)

HWERZH - REFEAAR 32,893,000
THEFHESAEETENZER 82
TIREBE  BEEMDERR - WIFRE
B FREEREE

BRERETRI - U EWE - BEERER
B (BT RRAEER) REREATIFE
e :

BF 4.75%
B 9.50% % 23.75%
BEF B REAM 9% E 31.67%
MEMERE FAHAZL 10% £ 33.33%

(ARG E BE)
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

16. Right-of-Use Assets 16. FAEEE
Leasehold
Leased land
properties payment Total
HEYE HETHFE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR AR®T

As at 31 December 2020 7202012831 H
Carrying amount BREE 25,139 5,540 30,679

As at 31 December 2019 A2019F12A31H

Carrying amount BREE 31,356 5,784 37,140
For the year ended HZE2020F12 431 BLLEE

31 December 2020
Depreciation charge TEER 12,620 244 12,864
Total cash outflow for leases ~ HER & RH4R5E 12,983
Additions to right-of-use assets 1§ FI#E& ZE AN 7,098
For the year ended HBZE2019F 12831 ALLEE

31 December 2019
Depreciation charge TEER 12,813 244 13,057
Total cash outflow for leases ~ &R & RH4E5E 13,719
Additions to right-of-use assets & FI#E& E N 18,036
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16.

Right-of-Use Assets (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and
apartment units for its operations and staff quarters. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years.

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

The Group has extension option for a lease of office premise
in 2019. This is used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The extension option held is exercisable only by the Group
and not by the lessor. The period arising from the extension
option has been included in the calculation of lease liabilities at
commencement date of the lease.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no such triggering
event. The extension option was exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

EREEE (&)

ZMEFER  AEEREETHRAGHM
LRoBEM BIFEERETIEEZA -
HEAMMEBEEHRAS1FEI10F -

AN AREEBEAEBER DAL - AEH
REENEED (BRABEEL) HE
THEA RRBZEMERER A58
BERAXN—FHA - ZFEEVWENH
ELHHBOERAEIENBEATIEE
B2 -

R2019%  AEEFMASHHEERT
REEE - HOAREEEAKREZES
BRMEREETESAKRESEERS
e AREREMEREEZEENHAS
B(MIELMA)IT6E - ERBFEEELN
HEERREHERGANEERERNE
o

BEN - REBEAEBBAFH R EREABAE
FIMEANERBE RS AEBEEH
FHERTAERETFEEREREE - RN
HE2019F12 A1 HILFE - MEHA
BEAEBERNSEMH - B 220206124
S1THILLFE  EREEHCETE -
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e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

Investment Properties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17. REWYHE

RMB’000
ARBFT
Cost: :
At 1 January 2019, MR2019%F1 A1 8 » 2019F &
31 December 2019 and 2020 202012 A31H 26,833
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1 H1H 6,116
Provided for the year F N 1,274
At 31 December 2019 20199 12 A31 H 7,390
Provided for the year FNHHE 1,274
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H 8,664
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H 18,169
At 31 December 2019 720194 12 A31 H 19,443

The Group leases out commercial properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2019: 1 to 3 years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held
by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend. None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over 20 years with 5% residual value.

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Beijing and Cangzhou, PRC. The directors of the
Company have determined that the class of the investment
properties is commercial based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were valued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations
performed by Shenzhen Guoyu Assets Real Estate And Land
Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd., an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB19,957,000 (2019: RMB27,179,000)
based on direct comparison approach. There is no change
from valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a total carrying value of RMB17,434,000 (2019:
RMB18,645,000) were pledged to obtain a banking facility
from a bank amounting to RMB10,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB10,000,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of minimum
lease payments receivable are included in note 40(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of RMB19,957,000 (2019: RMB27,179,000) is
measured under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were
no transfers into or out of level 3 during both years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

17. REW=E (&)

P EMERERENR20FRITE - F
SHEBEA5% °

REERKREMEBIEFBIL R KA M
MEERAYE - ARAESREREWE
WS FUERSVENRREEEER
PIRER - AEBRIREYEN20204F
12A3BRBEELIEESERMGEMR
IHmEREETHEWE T THEME
RARNEELBEMIEGE BEAR
A K #19,957,000 7T (20194 : A R %
27,179,0007T) ° FTARHERMTA B F
EWMmED NEFTEAAEER B
BYEseRERERARAEBENAS -

MR2020F 12 A31H  REEBETEHREY
¥ (REAEAR AR 17,434,000 7T (2019
F: AR®18,645,0007T)) 2 E M - LA
BIR{TES S5 AR 10,000,0007T(2019
F12A31 8 : AR¥10,000,0007T) &8
1TEE -

KREMERKEHERTE=F BE%
EEWME RERNE — SN FBEHRLER
&SRR MITE 40() ©

A R #19,957,0007C (20194 : A R ¥
27,179,0007T) Z AR EBETIA R EEE
LEZEBHRAE - ZMEFERALESEA
FEHFEZEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

18. Goodwill 18. BE

RMB’000

ARET T

Cost at 1 January 2019 7R 20194F 1 H 1 BRI A 3,129
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) UeBE M /B A = (BI5E37) 15,454
Exchange realignment M 4, 8 B (138)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 #2019F 12 A 31 AW A K IRENFE 18,445
Exchange realignment i 5 SR B (838)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 AN A K IREFE 17,607

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (“CGU”) for impairment
testing:

° Regional coal inspection service-rendering CGU;

° Regional petroleum inspection service-rendering CGU
in Greater China; and

° Regional petroleum inspection service-rendering CGU
in Singapore.

The recoverable amount of the regional coal inspection
service-rendering CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 18% (2019: 18%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional coal
inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period is
2% (2019: 2%). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
there is no impairment required as at the end of the reporting
period.
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18.

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the regional petroleum inspection
service-rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18% (2019: 18%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional
petroleum inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2019: 2%). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, there is no impairment required as at the end of
the reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional petroleum inspection
service-rendering CGU in Singapore which was acquired
in year 2019 has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 18% (2019: 18%). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the regional petroleum inspection
service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period is 2% (2019:
2%). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no impairment required as at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
CGUs is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

18. A& ()

EERER S (&)

R EE /& AR iR 5 RS IR IR
CEABUMATKEEIERNFRE
B AR EEASMILER T
BEENReREENET - RenE
TE ORI {55 AR A9 % AT B 3R R /5 18% (2019 4F -
18%) o AR TERT AL FF HRA & 1% A B AR B8
FRERBEBEMNRERENIERER2%
(20194 : 2%) ° KAFIEER AN REH
R—BEBERE -

AT N B Hb & 1 AR R 5 RIS IR (L3R &
EEBM (R2019F U ) MrT e £ 58 )
ERNFERERE  RARAEEABMIE
hEHMBEENREeREBAEE - ]
wmETERE A ATRGER 3 18% (2019
F:18%) - ARTERTAF BRI EEARA
BRRBREREECNRERENERER
2% (20194 : 2%) - KRR EER RN
HEAR— L EAERE -

DRESHRSELSUNHEBREENT

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETTT
Carrying amount of goodwill P EIRAE
Regional coal inspection AR R 1 R AR B AR TS
service-rendering 572 572
Regional petroleum inspection RARFEREHEAE T
service-rendering in Greater China Al RS 2,419 2,419
Regional petroleum inspection FET NI HR L B b [ 14
service-rendering in Singapore Ami 5 AR 14,616 15,454
17,607 18,445
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

N

RS R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

18.

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
CGUs as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwiill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved during the year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the regional coal inspection service-rendering CGU
and regional petroleum inspection service-rendering CGU
in Greater China and Singapore to exceed their respective
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

19. Intangible Assets 19. B EE
Customer
relationships
and inspection
Patents Software certifications Total
EFBER
=7 gt RBRRE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR AR®TR AR®BTR

31 December 2020 2020612 A31AH
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of 202041 A1 HEORRA

accumulated amortisation s Rt 3 2,051 1,753 3,807
Amortisation provided during FR#ERE (ME10)

the year (note 10) 2) (255) (380) (637)
Exchange realignment ERaECE - - (111) (111)
At 31 December 2020, net of M2020F 12 A31H ¢

accumulated amortisation ks REtEE 1 1,796 1,262 3,059
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12A31 8 :

Cost AR 13 2,552 2,250 4,815

Accumulated amortisation REEH 12 (756) (988) (1,756)
Net carrying amount REFE 1 1,796 1,262 3,059
31 December 2019 2019%12A31AH
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of R2019%1 A1 BEMA - 1%

accumulated amortisation B 5 2,209 2,211 4,425
Additions NE - 89 - 89
Amortisation provided during FREEHRE (i 10)

the year (note 10) 2 (247) (434) (683)
Exchange realignment I i - - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019F 12 A31 8 fik

accumulated amortisation Rt 3 2,051 1,753 3,807
At 31 December 2019: R2019%F 128318 :

Cost AR 13 2,552 2,361 4,926

Accumulated amortisation 25T (10) (501) (608) (1,119
Net carrying amount REFE 3 2,051 1,753 3,807
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

zT

BAFE R AR L (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

19.

20.

21.

Intangible Assets (Continued) 19. BILEE (&)
The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such FEEEENAERAFTFHAER - ZEHE
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over FWEEN TR E R
the following periods:
Patents 10 years =H 104F
Software 10 years ;i 104
Customer relationships and inspection 6 years EPFBERMRAFES 64
certifications
Investment in an Associate 20. REtELENKRE
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HE2019F12 A1 HILFEE - AEER
disposed of its entire 31% interest in Leon Intelligence & NBEBEEGER)RIEAERAR( HEE
Information (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (“Leon Intelligence”) EHEMRRERHEERNESENEE
to the other shareholders of Leon Intelligence for a total cash 3% - BB eNER/ARES6,200,000
consideration of RMB86,200,000, which was included in other 7T R2019F 12 A31 HE i FE R IE
receivable as at 31 December 2019 and was settled during AALRE > WEREZE2020F12 A31H 1E
the year ended 31 December 2020. A gain on disposal of FEHEE - HEWEEARE 3,772,000 705
RMB3,772,000 was credited to profit or loss for the year ABZE2019F 12 A 31 BILFEEH -
ended 31 December 2019.
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TRAAREHEE LS EE(ERNIEEKR)H
Group’s associate that was not individually material: WIEER -
2019
20194
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Share of the associate’s loss for the year RIS D EFRNEE 1,061
Share of the associate’s total comprehensive expense e E XL RS 25 1,061
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 21. BARBEFABRENEME

Profit or Loss

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of all of its financial products measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A change in fair value of RMB800,000
(2019: RMB656,000) was credited to profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Equity Investment at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

22, BAREBEEFARMEZEKE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3F_FTAR#ERE - AR EE

HRERE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
- 812

On 19 December 2018, the Group acquired a 12.5% interest
in UnionTest Technology (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“UnionTest”)
with a total cash consideration of RMB3,000,000. The Group
has no significant influence over UnionTest’s financial and
operating policy. In 2019, two of the shareholders of UnionTest
withdrew their investments in UnionTest. The Company’s
interests in UnionTest have increased to 14.29% afterwards.

The above equity investment not for held for trading was
irrevocably designated at FVTOCI.

The directors of the Company believes that Union Test will
not bring any value to the Group due to the unsatisfactory
financial performance in 2020 and 2019. Fair value loss of
RMB812,000 (2019: RMB2,188,000) is recognised in other
comprehensive expense during the year to reflect the true
value of such unlisted equity investment during the year ended
31 December 2020.

MH2018F 12 A19H - AN E Uk BB B Bl Rt
FEM)BRAT([HR])AI12.5% %
RIS RE A AR 3,000,0007T ° ANEE
RN R EEBRITEEATE -
20194 - BRI HY Y 44 PR 3R T [E] L 70 Bt
BRI E - NABIRBERMEREERIESE
14.29% °

EPRABERELIFEEE - T Al HE
e AR AR BEF AR -

S5 AR BIFE 2020 FF [ 2019 F B 75 R IR
TEE ARBEERABATE AAE
EERAMEE RERREMBE2ERY
ERAAEEEEAREKS812,0007T (2019
F: ARM21880007T) URBEZE
2020512 A31 B IEFE B B3 L m ik
RENEEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

23. Trade Receivables

23. ESEWFIE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Trade receivables B 5 RAH0R 112,019 97,165
Allowance for credit losses BEEBLEE (3,560) (2,462)
108,459 94,703

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB42,263,000.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
ranged from on demand and up to three months. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice

MR2019F1A1H - REEPEHNES
e RIE A AR 42,263,000 7T °
AEERAETFPFHOXIBEREZENE
B EHBRFBEERBNRGRIN 8
HBENTREXEREZ=M@A - A5H
SREBEHIREEEBGRIE - S REE
AETHEMO LS NEEBWARFEE
SRWRBEHIFEAMERRIEME
FRIGHR - B ZEBGRIETETE o

RIBEEZAME2TNE Z R FIR (NHRE
ERREE) REOTIAT

dates:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Within 3 months 31E A AR 88,635 77,024
Over 3 to 6 months S3EAL EZ=61EA 11,351 10,026
Over 6 months to 1 year 6IEANEZE14F 6,983 4,336
Over 1 1o 2 years 1FEE2F 1,490 3,317
108,459 94,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Trade Receivables (Continued) 23. EZEWFIE (&)
As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade R2020F 12 A31H - A&EBEME S EUW
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying IR T - BIREEA AR 19,928,000
amount of RMB19,928,000 (2019: RMB17,602,000) which Tt (20194 + A R #17,602,0007C ) #) f&
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due WERRNHRE HEE B - RE B &
balances, RMB8,577,000 (2019: RMB7,653,000) has been o AR#8,577,0007C (20194 + ARE
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default 7,653,000 T) E#EHIQ0 KA £ - BEE
due to the management’s historical experience on the AZEEHEAEEEANERERRBE
settlement pattern or record from these debtors and the good WHUAREZEEBEANRTHEBRER -
business relationship with these debtors. The Group does not WG B BE AR EE L) - AEE W R
hold any collateral over these balances. ZEEBREFEEEAEER -
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set BEAE SRR R EF O F B
out in note 44. FE44 -
Prepayments, Other Receivables and 24, FAMNFIE -  HthEWFERE
Other Assets ftEE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFTT
Prepayments FaRRIA 9,514 5,376
Deposits and other receivables e R E AR FRIE 22,372 11,050
Consideration receivable (note 20) FEUARAE (FEE20) = 6,200
31,886 22,626
Allowance for credit losses EEBXREE 62 62)
31,824 22 564
Portion classified as non-current assets 7 38 &R 3E M EN & EH D (10,410) (5,803)
21,414 16,761

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits, deposit paid for purchase of land and property,
plant and equipment, and deposits with suppliers. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 44.

e REMEEFAIEEES RS B
Bt W% BELARBZRERHERE
e - MER  BEREAFRERTR
MR ELLBRARRRAOBR®E - NEER
& AHBEITREDHT

B RS IR BT 44
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HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

25.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and

25. RERRESEB/BYURCER

Pledged Deposits (N
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFIT
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEER 78,875 76,008
Time deposits TEBITE R 784 823
79,659 76,831
Less: Time deposits pledged for port & = 1EZ&E 1 FAME R IRH)
access right JEEAfE R (784) (823)
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 78,875 76,008

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB53,289,000 (2019: RMB56,147,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Trade Payables 26. EZENRIE
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade payables BIFZHZAHENE S EMNFIBRNRER
presented based on the invoice dates. DT -
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Within 3 months 31EH AR 27,812 38,310
Over 3 to 6 months S3EANL E=61EA 4,895 5,770
Over 6 months to 1 year 6MEAEE14F 2,460 1,154
Over 1 to 2 years 1FAEE2F 92 222
35,259 45,456
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BSRNZEBENE  BEERBATE
settled on 90-day terms. ROOBHRNEE -
Contract Liabilities 27. EHEE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Short-term advances received EWREF R
from customers
Rendering of services TR AR 3,983 3,384

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB2,379,000.

When the Group receives short-term advances from
customers to render services, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposits.

R2019F1A1H @ BBEAARE
2,379,000 7T, °

HAEEBR RS MBI TP ESRR

P ANEERRANHRRBESL BEE
BRAAERNEEBBRENEER/L

PRSI AR AT o 2020 FEHE
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27. Contract Liabilities (Continued) 27. EREE(E)
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRETEHERARAZFELEELSNEE
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BRAMDEE -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥T AREEFTT
Revenue recognised that was included F#at A& K B E4EERA
in the contract liability balance at B E R
the beginning of the year 3,384 2,379
28. Other Payables and Accruals 28. HitENFIERESTIER
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEFTT
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits  [Eat & - TE K@ 36,646 20,032
Other taxes payable At JE ANTR 3K 1,249 850
Payable to vendors of property, JERTYIZ - B RERE
plant and equipment EERIE 3,597 4,511
Consideration payable (note 37) JERRAE (FI5E37) = 7,592
Others Hity 10,088 9,835
51,580 42,820

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of settlement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

29. Deferred Tax 29. EIEHIE
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE

Provision for

impairment
of trade
receivables Accrued
and other employee
receivables benefits Total
B oW
FRIE N CEA
JEMRIAE
BERE  ESHEERER A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 31 December 2018 and MR2018F 12 A31 H &

1 January 2019 20191 H1H 171 644 815
Deferred tax credited (charged) =T Az (REZINR)

to profit or loss (note 9) FYEERLIE (FI3E9) 125 (644) (519)
At 31 December 2019 R20194F 12 A31 H 206 _ 206
Deferred tax credited AT ABEMIEERIE

to profit or loss (note 9) (fFzE9) 224 - 204
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 520 - 520
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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29.

Deferred Tax (Continued) 29. EERIIE (E)
The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in the PRC of AEBERFREANRAHEEEA
RMB26,977,000 (2019: RMB19,234,000) that will expire in ARM26,977,0007C (2019 F : AR
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 19,234,000 7T) * R —ERFAEHAE
SHAR IR FEERTLFR o
The Group also has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong AEETREEREMBER MRELR
Kong and other countries/regions of RMB38,273,000 (2019: A IEE 1B A R 38,273,000 7T (2019 4F
RMB24,224,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting AR 24,224,0007T) - 1t 5RIE P] & PR B AR
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the RIS E A BB A BRI AR R FERFFIE -
losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of HRZEEERND LIREBEE —BREEH
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been WEAR  BAEERETKAIETHEE
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable AU A EAT P E) A RIIAEE - Bt
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax RAMZEERERRCHIBEE -
losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREE
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
on assets
Withholding  acquisition of
tax  subsidiaries Others Total
Fhils
KB AR
BREED
EIH AnBEREE Hith &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT ARBTR
At 1 January 2019 »N2019F1A1H 333 408 - 741
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A ) (95t 34)
(note 34) - - 121 121
Charged (credited) to profit PNEEHR GTABR)
or loss (note 9) (KI=E9) 4,339 (41) - 4,298
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 431 H 4,672 367 121 5,160
Credited to profit or loss P AEE (FHEE9)
(note 9) (1,245) (41) - (1,286)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31 H 3,427 326 121 3,874
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between The PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in The PRC.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

29.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

IESERE (%)
MEAEBIE S 1 ()

RIER B EMSHIA)  ERBIKA
IR ELERIIEREESERKREZA
BN10%TE T - 3% R F B 200841 H
1RBER - BEAMN2007F12A31H
BEEF] o fiwH B ELHNE IR B & BT IE RlA
ERE BTAEREHE  AIRKARER
TEHBMBE - BRAEEMES - EBATER
10% ° ALt - AEBERRFBIKHZ
LB R R D IRARR S BT -

ARBIRAEBR A OBRE L B SHAE
PHER ©

RIS A R A » 2020 FEHKE
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30.

tes to the Conso‘lidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

Borrowings 30. &
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Bank loans RITER 25,000 15,000
Other loans HA &% 8,830 48,273
33,830 63,273
Secured BT 25,000 55,134
Unsecured and unguaranteed IR N R 8,830 8,139
33,830 63,273
Bank Loans Bank Loans
BITER HER
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019% 2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT ARET T AREFT
The carrying amounts of the above JEEEEA LER (BREK
borrowings without repayable on BEER) HRAE
demand clause are repayable:
Within one year —ER 25,000 15,000 - 40,584
Within a period of more than —FH HETRBRTHEA
one year but not exceeding
two years - - - -
Within a period of more than MEL HETBBRFHEA
two years but not exceeding
five years - - 8,830 8,139
25,000 15,000 8,830 48,723
Less: Amounts shown under B MR ARE T RNEE
current liabilities (25,000) (15,000) - (40,584)
Amounts shown under non-current  AIERBIBEE NIIREISH
liabilities - - 8,830 8,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

30. Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Company issued secured guaranteed note (“Note”) to
an independent third party (“Purchaser”) by way of private
placement in the amount of HK$64,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB56,404,000) in 2018, which was matured on 28
September 2019 and further extend the maturity date to 28
September 2020. The Note bears interest on its outstanding
principal amount at the rate of 10% per annum, due and
payable in arrear every six months by the Company from the
issue date.

To secure the liabilities of the Company to the Purchaser
under the Note, the Company’s shareholders, Leon
Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited owned by LI Xiangli,
Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited owned by Liu Yi and
Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited owned by ZHANG
Aiying, charged 26,090,000 shares, 35,550,000 shares and
49,290,000 shares, respectively, on an aggregate basis being
110,930,000 shares representing approximately 27.73% of
the total issued share capital of the Company in favor of the
Purchaser. In addition to the share charges, LI Xiangli and
ZHANG Aiying provided personal guarantee in favor of the
Purchaser. The charge and guarantee was released upon
maturity of the Note during the year.

The Note is matured in 2020 and the entire amount was
repaid during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other borrowings with
principal amounts of RMB9,550,000 were loans from LEI Xihu
(“Mr. Lei”), the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
which are repayable in year 2022 and 2023.

The subsidiary and Mr. Lei entered into a supplementary
agreement during the year ended 31 December 2019,
pursuant to which, the interest accrued from the loans of
RMB257,000 were waived and the loans have become
non-interest bearing thereafter. The difference between
the principal amount and the present value of the other
borrowings of RMB1,435,000 was credited to equity
as deemed contribution from non-controlling interest of
subsidiary.

30.
GEE

(@)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

B (&)

R2018 4 » AR B ARERE 5 E5E
VE=ZF(EFDETHEERERER
(T2 ]) » % % /64,500,000 7T (18
B AR 56,404,000 7T) © B H2019
FOH28HEH - WiE— SRR T
K E2020F9A28H - ZHEIEFF X
10% WHAEEASENE - B¥TH
RENEARBRAERAREL

RERAQFHEBEFINEML K
A 7] B& # Leon Cornerstone Investment
Holding Limited ( B8 ZE M F # 5 )  Hawk
Flying Investment Holding Limited ( F1 213
# A ) I Swan Stone Investment Holding
Limited (FRRE RFEH ) AEHT /I EA
3 BI'E 126,090,000 & A% 15 ~ 35,550,000
f% A% 1 £ 49,290,000 0% B& 15+ 485 A&
110,930,000 Bz 17 - ME AR R B #1Th%
REBEEAI27.73% ° BRI E /SN - M)
FIRREREAE R BT m ARAHEAE
R BRRERENRFARBIHER

ZREN2020F 8 - B2 IHEER
FREE -

M2020F 12 A31 B » REBHAER
AN EE A AR 9,550,0007T ¢+ JhRE K
BAREERBRREAR((EEXEDH
B B BIEAR 2022 F K& 2023 F

B8

B

o

e

HZE2019F 12 A31BHILLFEE  ZWB
AREEFELERT - BHTmE Bt
AR¥E257,000 70 2 BN ERF S EER
% BEBERNEHETE - EfbfE
HRAREEA,435,000 707 ARG REELIR(E 2
e 8) 2= SEE AR A 2R B KB A B 3EIE R
R EAMAREHERS
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30. Borrowings (Continued) 30. B (&)
Notes: (Continued) s : (48)
(© As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans amounting (© R2020F12A31B AEBESHEA
to RMB10,000,000 (2019: RMB10,000,000) were guaranteed A K ¥10,000,000 7T (20194 = A R#&
by LI Xiangli (2019: LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying) and were 10,000,0007T ) #) 4R 17 B X A = 1A 7
secured by certain of the Group’s investment properties. (20194 : FAFKRKRER) EHER -
WAREB T TIRE Y E/ERR -
The loans carry floating rates determined by reference to the FRERIRE2E2RBTHARER
Loan Prime Rate of National Interbank Funding Centre i.e. BHRLHERTSREMNEMELN
effective interest rate of 4.59% (2019: 4.69% to 5.66%) per FENFIEREE - BIEBRF X A4.59%
annum. (20194F : 4.69% 2 5.66%) °
31. Lease Liabilities 31. HE&E
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFIT
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEEE:
Within one year —FR 13,343 13,682
Within a period of more than one year —4 A H{B R BIERFEHIE A
but not more than two years 5,443 7,895
Within a period of more than two years "4 A BB H FHIR A
but not more than five years 6,236 7,051
Within a period of more than five years #Bi@ T FEHIREA 1,491 3,002
26,513 31,630
Less: Amount due for settlement B RREBEE NIRR 12 AR
within 12 months shown A EN SR
under current liabilities (13,343) (13,682)
Amount due for settlement after RIEREBEE TN 126 A%
12 months shown under IHEEN SR
non-current liabilities 13,170 17,948

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has no lease
obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 4.36% to 7.96% (2019: 4.59% to
6%).
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Share Capital 32. A
Number
of shares
R E B
000 RMB’000
T AREFIT
Ordinary shares of US$0.00005 each & A TEI{& 0.00005 £ 7THY & i %
Authorised as at 1 January 2019, M2019F1 A1 H ~ 2019F &
31 December 2019 and 2020 2020%F 12 A 31 BREERA 1,000,000 328
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 720191 A1 H ~ 2019F &
as at 1 January 2019, 202012 A31 BB 31T M
31 December 2019 and 2020 TEET TR 400,000 131

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Group’s employees, directors and other participants in order
to retain and provide incentive to the employees of the Group
to achieve its business objectives. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company and as such limit is refreshed by
the Shareholders from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

33.

BRERTE

RNAREE —EERES 2 ([ AR ST
2 BERRKAEEEBKIINEE
B2 MEEREEE R ER - BRETEN
GERSEEREAEREE - E5kH
hmeEE  EARBRREHEDTASEE
BB NEKHEEBBEZ - BRETERN
2017 F5 A5 AAR - BRIESITEUE KIS
7] BEIEZAERI0FRIFBER

RIAR 15 B AU =1 81 M A o) H A B8 A A 51 3
TR B P B AR 1T T Al BE 31T
MEROHREHEHE & X T GHEERARF
PR ALE B HIE BT RARR B B 3
BRI LERH10% - FAREBIER 8 R E
MEM BB EREMARITENAE
RITERE AT M A T 31T EV A B
R # B TMFRBTREEITRINAIB0%
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33.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant that is
eligible under the Scheme and any other option schemes
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
eligible participant would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such eligible
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company. For the share
options granted up to 31 December 2020, the exercisable
periods commences either on the grant date to two years or
after a vesting period of one to three years and ends at the
expiry date of the Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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- - e = —
33. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 33. HEARAESTEI(E)
Particulars and movements of the target shares under the B EE T E R R S R
Scheme:
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Lapsed at Granted Lapsed at
1 January during during 31 December during during 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant Notes 2019 year year 2019 year year 202 price*  Exercise period
0195 0195 RAE
1A18 12R318 12A3%8
BSAL RERE Wit Ak FREE  FRN Rk FARE  FAAN Kk kg k%
000 000 000 000 000 '000 ‘000 HKD per share
Th Th TR Th Th Th Th ShRER
Director
£
M. Yang 28July 2018 ) 1,000 - - 1,000 - - 1,000 1414 23.July 201810 22 July 2023
oy N1857A2A 01857 ABAZB%TA2H
Mr. Yang 23 July 2018 o] 1,000 - - 1,000 - - 1,000 1414 23 July 201910 22 July 2024
i3 018574238 01957 ABAZAUETARA
M. Yang 28July 2018 ) 1,000 - - 1,000 - - 1,000 1414 23 July 202010 22 July 2025
i 1857A 238 0% ARBEANBET ARA
Others
A
Other employee 4July 2017 ¢] 2325 - - 2,305 - (270) 2,055 128 4July 201803 July 2023
Aips 01757 74A 01857 A4HZ2003%57A3A
Other employee 4y 2017 ] 1,965 - - 1,965 - - 1,965 128 4July 2019103 July 2024
LhER 01757748 01957 A4BZ204%7A3A
Other employee 4July 2017 ] 2,860 - - 2,860 - (120 2740 128 4July 2020103 July 2025
EftEE 177 A4R 20057 B4BEA557 A8
10,150 - - 10,150 - (390) 9,760
Brercsable BB
~theend -Ex
of the year 6,290 10,150
Weighted average ~ INET571FE
eXeICise price 1.3 - - 1.3 1.3

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

No share options were exercised during the year (2019: Nil).

(@

On 4 July 2017, the board of directors of the
Company approved the initial grant only to the Group’s
employees. The total number of the target shares
under the initial grant was 8,000,000, representing 2%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates
of the first anniversary, second anniversary and third
anniversary of the grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and
40% of the trust benefit units granted to each Scheme
participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period is
from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking
dates, during which the disposal of the trust benefit
units is prohibited.

* B AR ROTT(E B AT A A SR AT B 3R 7T 3K
RRRBAE BRI ELRE -

FAMERBEAREITE (20194 « £) -

(@) R2017E 7848 - KAARESEH
HEEMAEEREHGAEL - BX
BB TER IR0 8284 8,000,000
B - (AR AR EITRA2% ©

RAEZEMRZA - BRHAHEN
F—@E - F_@EAME=@AFER
Z B o 18T 5B 51 i R ATt
BRESEERE - R TS BIRERE
281 30% + 30% M 40% M {5 +E 5
HEBMNATURE ZEHR AR
HEHE P SBEE - A
HEETET B0 -

R BRBRIERAR AR - 2020 FERE 187
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33. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b)

On 23 July 2018, the board of directors of the
Company approved the grant to a director, Mr. Yang.
The total number of the target shares under this grant
was 3,000,000, representing 0.75% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the date of
grant, the expiry dates of first anniversary and second
anniversary of grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which one third of
the trust benefit units granted to participant shall be
unlocked. The lock-up period is from the grant date to
each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group

recognised a share option expense of HK$262,000 (equivalent
to RMB227,000) (2019: HK$943,000 (equivalent to
RMB844,000)).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 10,150,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.5% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date.
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34.

Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
to recognise the contributions by certain persons (“Eligible
Persons”), including employees and directors of companies
within the Group, entity ("Invested Entity") in which the Group
holds any equity interests, adviser, consultant or expert in any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity and other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the Group,
and to give incentives to them in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group, and
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by directors of the Company, the Share Award Scheme is valid
and effective for 10 years from the Adoption Date (the “Award
Period”).

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors of the
Company may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
select any Eligible Persons to participate in the Share Award
Scheme as selected participants and determine the shares
to be granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period for
the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and conditions
set out in the Share Award Scheme. The directors of the
Company shall not grant further awards if they would result
in the number of Award Shares (defined as below) under the
Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the Adoption Date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

34. R17ERREETE

R2020F 10 A27H(T M A H ) - &K
NEIERN— AR D 82 E R8I ([ I fh 2E R &1
2 URABFAL(TEEBALD AT
EEER  BEAEEARFAMNEER
T AEEREPBEEAREZERE
(TR EER])  AEBMEMKAE RS
FHEEEBERTAMESSIEBEER
A2 EMREE - BAARBERLERE S
¥ CEBBIEMERZRE AR
B AEB s EREIEREL R
Bz HAnAR RIS Rl 283 - WA SR
HEEE)  UBRBREATEEFELER
BRIEER  WATEEME—TEER
SIEHEMAE o IR ZEEHE B ERA A A
RE - B A10F ([EEEM]) -
RATRESALRATEIRATALE

RIBR D BB - ARREZATEZ
BRBHRETASERALERETES
B E 2 RENEH S XEEMF LN
Betn ~ 57 BB AR ZE B (R4 DA K 55 T8 B ) 1) B
- MRS A 2R R At B P 8L 16 3R K 16k A
BRI o fisf AR 5 P {0 AR &1 B4 th 10 BB A
7 (EER TX) BB BBRRMAAHE#
TTRMDEBN10%  AIARREETI/H
B AR -

PRSI AR AT o 2020 FEHE

189



\ D

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ma

RS MR (78

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

34.

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Company established a trust to purchase shares of the
Company for the benefit of employees and the directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries under the Share Award Scheme
(the “Award Shares”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award
Scheme, the Company has appointed a trustee, The Core
Trust Company Limited (“Trustee”), to administer the Share
Award Scheme and to purchase and hold the Award Shares
during the Award Period.

Unless the Board of Directors determines otherwise at its
absolute discretion, an award shall automatically lapse upon
(i) the voluntary resignation or dismissal, or by termination of
his employment or service in accordance with the termination
provisions of his contract of employment or service by
the Group otherwise than by reason of redundancy; or (ii)
termination of the selected participant’s employment or early
termination of the contractual engagement with the relevant
member of the Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise
pursuant to law or employment or engagement contract.

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger, scheme
of arrangement, share repurchase or otherwise, all the
outstanding Award Shares shall immediately vest on the date
when such offer becomes or is declared unconditional or in
the case of a scheme of arrangement on the record date for
determining entitlements under such scheme and such date
shall be deemed the vesting date.

If there is an event of change in control the Company, whether
by way of offer, merger, scheme of arrangement or otherwise,
unless otherwise directed by the Board at its absolute
discretion, all the outstanding Award Shares shall immediately
vest on the date when such change of control event becomes
or is declared unconditional and such date shall be deemed
the vesting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee
purchased an aggregate of 5,516,000 shares of the Company
from the market at a total consideration of approximately
RMB5,143,000 (including directly attributable incremental
costs) and the shares purchased at the weighted average
market price of HK$1.07 per share during the year. No shares
were granted to the Eligible Persons pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme during the year.
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36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying
employees of its Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributed 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme but limited to the cap of HK$1,500.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC and other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to the
time of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding those
employees who resign before their retirement, at a percentage
that is specified by the local government authorities.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
RMB5,827,000 (2019: RMB14,347,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the current and prior years on page 10
of these consolidated financial statements.
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37. Business Combinations

A.

Acquisition of Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(“Saybolt SG”)

On 8 May 2019, Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. (“Leon
Overseas”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Saybolt Holding BV, an independent
third party, pursuant to which Leon Overseas
agreed to acquire 100% interest in Saybolt SG at a
cash consideration of US$3,750,000 (equivalent to
RMB25,782,000) (the “Acquisition”) plus the agreed
adjustment on the excess amount of working capital
of Saybolt SG as at 15 May 2019 amounting to
SGD471,000 (equivalent to RMB2,436,000). The
unpaid excess amount of working capital of Saybolt
SG of and the cash consideration of RMB5,156,000
were included in other payables of the Group as
at 31 December 2019. Saybolt SG is principally
engaged in technical testing and analysis services
(including certification of products and services) for
laboratory testing and inspection of bulk cargo of
oil, gas, chemicals and bunkers. The directors of the
Company consider that the Acquisition provided an
opportunity to expand the Group’s services to cover
laboratory testing and inspection of bulk cargo of oil,
gas, chemicals and bunkers in Singapore and other
Southeast Asia territory.

This transaction was completed on 15 May 2019.
More details of the Acquisition, are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 May 2019
and 16 May 2019 respectively.
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37. Business Combinations (Continued) 37. ¥¥50t(E&)

A. Acquisition of Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. A. Yy #& Saybolt (Singapore) Pte.
(“Saybolt SG”) (Continued) Ltd. ([ Saybolt SG ) (&)
Consideration transferred EEE

15 May 2019
201945 A15H
RMB’000
ARETIT
Cash consideration RERE 28,218
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B TERRE RIRSEEY (1,041)
Less: unpaid amount as at 31 December 2019 (note 28) & : 72019412 A31 BHY
RENeEE (MiFE28) (7,592)
Net cash outflow from acquisition WEEPTSIR & L F 58 19,585
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at HERBV G EFEMNE — X FE
the date of acquisition based on purchase AR E B £ i 1S B R 4 &
price allocation prepared by Savills Real ([E—XKFEBAER ) TRz iE
Estate Valuation (Guangzhou) Ltd. (“Savills”), EEZERKE AR ENE
an independent valuer ERFERERE
15 May 2019
2019%5 A 15H
Notes RMB’000
k=3 AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment #7% - BiE K% & 15 5,111
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEfTEUE - 24 M
other receivables E fth fEUGRIA 1,518
Right-of-use assets EREEE 6,847
Tax recoverable AT EI R IR 550
Cash and cash equivalents ReERReEED 1,041
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA 16,275
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 30 (121)
Trade payables = AN (8,286)
Other payables and accruals ~ H A (T 7B N ETE B (3,324)
Lease liabilities HEBE 43 (6,847)
12,764
The fair value as well as the gross contractual amount RUcEE B E - FTUEE B 5 K H i & 5K
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted EHHNAREBERENRSEARARE
to RMB17,709,000 at the date of acquisition. 17,709,000 7T °
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37. Business Combinations (Continued)

A.

Acquisition of Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(“Saybolt SG”) (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

" Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. XBEH (&)

A. X & Saybolt (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. ([ Saybolt SG ) (&)

WBELEE

15 May 2019
20195 H15H
RMB’000
AREBFT

Consideration transferred
Less: net assets acquired

HEAE
B TR A A E

28,218
(12,764)

15,454

Goodwill arose in the Acquisition because the cost
of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Saybolt
SG. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. Business Combinations (Continued)

A.

Acquisition of Saybolt (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
(“Saybolt SG”) (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition — continued

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 is RMB5,354,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Saybolt SG. Revenue for the
year includes RMB68,013,000 generated from Saybolt
SG.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2019, revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
of the Group would have been RMB437,263,000, and
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the
Group would have been RMB31,969,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Saybolt SG been acquired at the beginning
of the prior year, the directors of the Company have:

° calculated depreciation of plant and equipment
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising
in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts
recognised in the pre-acquisition financial
statements; and

o determined borrowing costs based on the
funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business
combination.
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38. Changes In Interest In Subsidiaries

A

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group disposed of 20% of its interest in Leon HK and
Saybolt Tianjin to Leon-Saybolt Pte. Ltd., a company
owned by a director of Leon Overseas for a total
cash consideration of US$200,000. The difference
of RMB210,000 between the increase in the non-
controlling interests of RMB1,137,000 and the
consideration received of RMB1,347,000 has been
credited to capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in
Guangzhou Lihong Energy from non-controlling interest
for a total cash consideration of RMB3,317,000.
The difference of RMB39,000 between the decrease
in non-controlling interests of RMB3,356,000 and
the consideration paid of RMB3,317,000 has been
credited to capital reserve.

39. Pledge of Assets

Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated F‘iﬁ

Operating Leases Arrangements

As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a

terms of one to three years.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

40.
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=%
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2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within one year —F LR 1,387 1,299
In the second year BETF = 1,382
1,387 2,681




A\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

RS R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

41.

42.

Capital Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

41.

BARESE

REBEBEAATEARRLE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETHBARBE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KR 784 1,714

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
other significant commitment.

Capital Risk Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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Capital Risk Management (Continued) 42. EXRREARERE (&)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEERERLEREZRER  BREERE

debt divided by capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to REEFERUNERANEEEFHENR

maintain the gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt includes trade Mo REBEBNBEKABIFEREELER

payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank R70% - BEFHEREESHENHIE - K

loans and other loans, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital HENFIERESIAE « FERITERK

represents equity attributable to owners of the Company. The EMEFRESRAESEEY - EXIER

gearing ratios at the end of reporting periods are as follows: NAEA ANEL#ER - RIEHARERL
BN,

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Trade payables B HENIA 35,259 45,456
Other payables and accruals (note 28) EAhFERTFIE K fEsT1E B (i 28) 51,580 42,820
Bank loans and other loans IRITER R EAME R 33,830 63,273
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RIREEEY (78,875) (76,008)
Net debt BEFHE 41,794 75,541
Equity attributable to owners of RN EHEE AFEIL RS
the Company 251,105 222,953
Capital and net debt BEARKEEFE 292,899 208,494
Gearing ratio (Note) TEARLE R (B EE) 14.27% 25.31%
Note: The gearing ratio of the Group is 21.39% (2019: 32.46%) if Bt WEBSBEENR2020F 12831 BHNAEE
the debt includes the lease liabilities of RMB26,513,000 (2019: B E ARK26,513,0007T (20194 © A
RMB31,630,000) as at 31 December 2020. R#31,630,0007T) + AIAREERERLL

% /321.39% (20194 : 32.46%) °
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43. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising

from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

43.
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METHEENEEHE

TRALAEERELTYELNAEE
B ReMFRSEHYEREN - BE
APEANAENRERED (FIRKERE
MER) MAKENGARERERANED
BRRERSMERSRENAE -

Bank loans
Dividend Lease and other Interest

payable liabilities loans payables Total

FITER
FERTARS HE8E  REBER JERFE fEf
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AR%TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2019 7201951 A1H - 18,674 76,085 1,729 96,488
Financing cash flows BEHLTE (3.000) (13719 (12307) (5,893) 34919
Dividend declared BERRE 3,000 - - - 3,000
Interest expense (note 8) flEREY (fEs) - 1437 - 5,427 6,864
Waiver of interest expense (note 30) H#af 8L (3 30) - - - (257) (257)
Fair value adjustment (note 30) DA EEAR (F30) - - (1435) - (1435)
Inception of new leases BiRFTHE - 18,036 - - 18,036
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) WEE—HRHB AR (M) - 6,847 - - 6,847
Exchange realignment EiEE - 355 930 - 1,285
At 31 December 2019 12019F 12 A31 B - 31,630 63,273 1,006 95,909
Financing cash flows BEHLTE (15,000) (12983 (29,680) (3783) (61,446)
Dividend declared BERRE 15,000 - - - 15,000
Interest expense (note 8) FlEREY (fs) - 1,440 - 2,777 4217
Inception of new leases [yt - 7,008 - - 7,098
Exchange realignment EiEE - (672) 237 - (435)
At 31 December 2020 1202012 A31 B - 26,513 33,830 - 60,343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continue

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

44. Financial Instruments 44, €ETH
(a) Categories of Financial Instruments (@) =WMIAEDE
Financial assets THEE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT
Financial assets at REIEN AT ER
amortised cost: TRIBE
Trade receivables B Z EWGRIA 108,459 94,703
Financial assets included in ST AE b U IR
other receivables and LEMEENSREE
other assets 12,777 13,536
Pledged deposits [REEwCYED N 784 823
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 78,875 76,008
Financial assets at fair value AR BB AHMEE K
through other HWEREE -
comprehensive income:
Equity investment BARBET AHM
at FVTOCI ZEEHRERE = 812
200,895 185,882

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

44. €T H (&)

(a) Categories of Financial Instruments (@) =S=WMIEDE(E)
(Continued)
THEE
Financial liabilities
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AREETTT
Financial liabilities at RHEHEKATENSREAE
amortised cost:
Trade payables B B ENIA 35,259 45,456
Financial liabilities included ST AE At FE - 5008 K 5+ 1E B
in other payables HeEAaGE
and accruals 13,685 21,938
Borrowings B 33,830 63,273
82,774 130,667
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEEBREEEEREEK

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans and other loans, lease
liabilities, pledged deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to support for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to pledged bank deposits (see note 25),
other loans (see note 30) and lease liabilities (see note
31 for details). The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances (see note 25) and variable-rate bank loans
(see note 30). The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on bank balances and Loan Prime Rate of National
Interbank Funding Centre arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated borrowings. The Group manages
its interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.

As at 31 December 2020, approximately 78% (2019:
24%) of the Group’s bank loans and interest-bearing
borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group’s equity.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

44. €T H (&)

(b)

MR EREE B RRBGR (&)

FEmELE

A& E GRS ERRITER (M
i25) - B R (RHFES30) Rl
EREGFRBRAMEI ARENAA
(BB =@\ o A< 5 [F J7 i B 82F
BHXRRTESNASREMNR (R
KiFE25) R B FIRIRITTEK (R
E30) BRAMBEREN KRR -
FEEMNBEERENEARIES
PR AR EAA R EHERE AT
EENRTEHKLEERTEARE
P& AL B R I5 ME F R A F
RRE) o AEBRIEHN EKF KA
RHEERAN RESHMELNE
ERE NEBEMERER - BF
& 5 2 B B € KT B A R 8 SR L
7] WiEREAESEHER

R2020%F12A31H &N & B 4
78% (20194F : 24%) IRITE R &
SHREFUES TR -

TRIRTHEABEMEERE T
BOBERT - HAREENHEFE
(BB BN XERNTE) LA
SEERHNERARHRNEEE
BEGURIMED AT -

PR BREBRIERARAR < 2020 FERE 203




e N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 100 basis point (2019: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease in variable-rate bank loans are
used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
Pledge bank deposits and bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis as the management considers
that the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising
from variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2019:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would decrease/
increase by HK$213,000 (2019: decrease/increase by
HK$128,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
loans.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the relevant
group entities were equivalent to RMB26,440,000
(2019: RMB12,793,000), nil (2019: RMB1,006,000)
and nil (2019: RMB40,134,000), respectively.
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44.

TRIA (&)

(b)

MHEREE B RRBGR (&)

FEmELE (&)

A TERE DT IRERES AR
IR B TET o D HREN
HREMAOAEESHR T ANEME
FEHMAEEMRE - FRZBF
K ER1T B FE NSk Rk 4 100 fE 2 25
(2019 - 100E £ ) - RKREE
EBHFEEErZBMTE - B
RERERABRZEEEFRITE
RRBITHEBEENR S RENE
[E BRI RER - B BURRE 5 47
1% B IRITE R RIRIT AR TERR
TESh o

W= _ AT F& 100 EE 2 (2019
F - 1001BEE) - fpTA H B E
HREAE - BIREEBE 20204 12
A31 BILFEEOREFBEBRLD,
#11213,000 77T (20194 : w4~
#h1128,0007T) ° LLAEE AR
REERZFEFIRBITERAAES
MR REE

S BR

AEFEARREMNRESEYRA
B A TR E T B R INE LR o
R 2020F 12 A31 H » A& E A
AEEERNEEE AN EREE
BEMNReRAEEBYM R ERTT
f& 35 5l & A R 26,440,000 7T
(2019%F + AR¥12,793,0007T) *
7 (20194 : A KR #1,006,0007T )
K 4B (20194F © A R % 40,134,000
TT) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate
by 5%, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities):

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

44. €T H (&)

(b)

MR EREE B RRBGR (&)

SR ()

REE B BT EHNE B IPHER o R
e AEEERESERINER
% YN BEREREEHPEXN
SINGE R\ o

TRIRTHEAEEMBEERITT
BHBERT  AKEHAAE (AR
EREERBBENAABEES) Y
PE K 5% M & T2 Al s R B BRI
#r

2020 2020 F
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
SMNEEREM  BIERFEGHM
OR2) (Ri2)
RMB’000
AR®T T
If RMB weakens against the AR BTTRE
Hong Kong dollar 5% (1,124)
If RMB strengthens against the fis AR B TTIHE
Hong Kong dollar (5%) 1,124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

44. €T H (&)

(b) HEEREEBFEREE(H)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) I E e ()
2019 20194
Increase (Decrease)
(decrease) increase
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
HNREFE 1B hN e A ORid)
O A) #Zm
RMB’000
ARBFT
If RMB weakens against the AR BTTRE
Hong Kong dollar 5% (1,417)
If RMB strengthens against the fis AR B TTIHE
Hong Kong dollar (5%) 1,417
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B R EFE

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, pledged deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy parties. Receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The credit
quality of customers is assessed after taking into
account the customers’ financial position and past
experience with the customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC and
Singapore, which accounted for 34% and 46% (2019:
33% and 43%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had concentration of credit risk, 12% (2019:
18%) of its total trade receivables were due from its
largest customer and 30% (2019: 33%) of its total
trade receivables were due from its top five customers
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
based on provision matrix, except for the trade
receivables with significant trade balances and credit-
impaired which are assessed individually.

The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographic region and internal
credit rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the end of reporting period about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Debtors with significant balances with gross carrying
amounts of RMB23,333,000 were assessed
individually.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

44. €T H (&)

(b)

MR EREE B RRBGR (&)

=B e R Bl e ()

EPEMELREZENIE (&)

REEZMENEE D HEERR
FEEF R RETINE - 722020
F12 A31 B AMEE Z RGBS
EH 09 34% [ 46% (20194F : 33% I
43%) ° PA2020F 12 A31 8 » A%
BErEERBE+ T8 EEHK
THARFAP - 12% (20194 : 18%) 3K
BEZAEF M30% (20194 :
33%)BIRAHEAAREF - AKEE
ERRERE AEEERERE
FT—lEEEEEECEERBERE
Bt -

BEAN - NEERIEREBRERE S
HHENEMERERRARE TETR
BiHE  EEBERBEZEREE
BR{E2 8 5 RUGIAE A ERIFHE -

BEXDERAGRLEERR (B
BB ERABEEFRE D)
% E% P 2o B AE R R B Hl B BiE
E o LAt ERREA K INAEAER -
ERREIRRERRAGHNER
BEEM - BRI S R R AR
MBI AERAIFEER -

AE@EREE AR 23,333,000
EREHRZEBATIAERIFEE -

PRSI AR AT o 2020 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

44.

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

BT A (&)
(b) HMBEREEREREE (H)

=B e R Bl e ()

EPEMELREZENIE (&)

TR AKEEHRBREGE
B ZREFENEERRER

2020512 A 31H

Past due
il
Less than Over
Current 9 months 9 months Total
B HRofEA HEBIEA it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Gross carrying amount BERTAE 66,742 19,020 2,924 88,686
ECL TEEEEEX 1,492 585 1,434 3,511
Average loss rate FHBEE 0.2%-2.82%  0.52%-4.13% 27.43%-56.32%
As at 31 December 2019 MR2019%F 12 A31H
Past due
Less than Over
Current 9 months 9 months Total
N PRIEAR B9 fE A CEH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARBFT AREFT
Gross carrying amount BERTAEIE 77,781 14,548 4,836 97,165
ECL TBEEEEX 757 186 1,519 2,462

Average loss rate FHEEE 0.05%-1.74%
As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided
RMB3,511,000 (2019: RMB2,462,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables, based on the provision
matrix. Impairment allowance of RMB49,000 (2019:

Nil) were made on debtors with significant balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

r‘

R

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with

customers (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the

simplified approach.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

ERT A (&)
(b) HEERREEEEREE(E)

=B e R Bl e ()

EPEMELHEZEWIE (&)

TRUFIERE S B E RIS
(CERRNERESREES -

2020 2019
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired)
20205 2019
SHREEERL ZHBRHEEEX
(T EEERE) (TEEERE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January ®1A1H 2,462 1,356
Changes due to financial »1 A1 B®ER
instrument, recognised TRT RSN #
as at 1 January:
— Reversal of impairment — RBEFERER
losses recognised R (EEEREE
in prior year (2,442) (1,334)
New or originated financial MARFEFIENEE
assets during the L EREE -
current year:
— Impairment losses — BERRREEE
recognised 3,540 2,440
3,560 2,462

B R IRERIEIRER A o 2020 FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

Other receivables

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December
2020, no allowance for credit losses (2019: a reversal
of allowance for credit losses of RMB320,000) was
recognised.

The loss rate applied was 1% for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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(b)

MHEREE B RRBGR (&)

=B e R Bl e ()

EPEMELREZENIE (&)

B EBERRDRBES ARTEF
HANELBREORELMAE
I 5t °] 15 6 AT HE 12 & RHE I
B MEBANHABRORALE
he BEEEFREMHA - AR
FHARBERERBANERER -

EL1th JEWHA IR

BREMEEZERZEME AR
RAIEERBBAEMNDE  BEL
BAKRAIER BBET HOREY
TERTEHEER - B HAMEKKIE
R 4% & H9 AT Uk B 14 38 17 7E BA M B FF
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KEERE - B E2020F 12 A 31
HIEFE  DHEIREESEBRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

As at 31 December 2020, 54.8% and 37.0% (2019:
47.7% and 20.3%) of pledged bank deposits and
bank balances of the Group are deposited in a bank
in PRC and a bank in Singapore respectively. Credit
risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for pledged
bank deposits and bank balances by reference to
information relating to probability of default and loss
given default of the respective credit rating grades,
ranged from B3 to Aa1 (2019: B3 to Aal) published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average
loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances is considered to be insignificant.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories.

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

44. €T H (&)

(b) HBEBRERERFEREE(H)

=E/m R BE G ()

ERIFRITIFARRITHES

2020512 A31H » AN & E54.8%
}37.0% (2019 F : 47.7% %% 20.3%)
ERIFRITE R R TR E D RITF
RO AR BISRTT RSB N3 SR 1T o B3I
ROTTFERERITEHRNEERRE
B-BAAXZHAGERITEER
B EEIRMBT ASEETAN
B1T - AEBBRLERINBEE
STRMER A AERESEETRR
RIEE AR RBLIBRAERNER
(M FB3ZEAal 2fH) (20194 : B3
ZAal) - iHEEEFPRITFRKRIR
THENI12EATEREERK R
BEHBAER  BEBRITFERR
IRITHESBN 12 @A TEHEEBRR
BAEWRERX °

7458 B 7 7 B 1 B LB 4R A4
AT HRRIARR o

Internal credit rating ~ Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
ABEETR it B A EWRE HihemER
Normal The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
IF% HF FEORRERY B EAEHTE 2EEBEEREL - REAESHEERX
FEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
ERLE ERACERIHERET  BRE2EEN HIRMEERE - 121EAEBEERE
FEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increase Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
A&t WRERINBAEERET - 2HBBEERL - PHRBEERL -
EERER BRI EEEN HEERE FEERE
Credit-impaired There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
EERE BRBETAECEERE LHIRMEERE - HEHEERE -
EERE EERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued) 44, €RT A (/E)

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEEREEBEEEZERBCK(E)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment =EE R R EEFFL (E)
(Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging REARRRFAEE
The table below shows the credit quality by reference TRE TN 2020F £ 2019412 A
to internal credit rating and the maximum exposure to STHMBREAEBEEBR(EZE
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which ERBEEHER  RIEAMER
is mainly based on past due information unless other EESNHBAZKANE N TN
information is available without undue cost or effort, BRNEEER(K2ERNBEE
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December T4 EEReEERBEI KR FREER
2020 and 2019. The amounts presented are gross S22V EBEREREENE
carrying amounts for financial assets. E#E °
12m
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 ATEHA 2 HITEH
FEB% FEBX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E1R8 YL RIS BlenE

RVMBO0O ~ RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTR

2020 20205
Trade receivables B AR - - - 112,019 112,019
Financial assets included in SRR

other receivables and REAMEENSREE

other assets

- Normal* - 8" 12,839 - - - 12,839
Pledged deposits BEAER 784 - - - 784
Cash and cash equivalents BeLBeZED 78,875 - - - 78875

92,498 - - 112,019 204,517
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued) 44, €ET A (/E)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HHEEREEBEEERBCK(E)
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R EEFFL ()
(Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) R R FLEE (&)
12m
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{4ATEH 2HEH
FEBX EJ=¢-FS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1[RE FoMRE FIMRE Bler
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTL ARBTT  ARETR AREFT  ARETR
2019 20194
Trade receivables BRI R - - - 97,165 97,165
Financial assets included in SAR RN
other receivables and REMEERNSRAE
other assets
- Normal* - 8" 13,598 - - - 13,598
Pledged deposits BEAER 823 - - - 823
Cash and cash equivalents BeLBeZED 76,008 - - - 76,008
90,429 - - 97,165 187,594
* The credit quality of the financial assets included in * BT ATEMFIE - B EKGRIE
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is REMEENEREEN &8
considered to be “normal” when they are not past B BfiEERRAeREER
due and there is no information indicating that the HIRHER R B R BAFEE M -
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk HEBEEZRGAAIERE] -8
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality Al SREENEEEZWEAR
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. [AT&E] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued) 44. ST R (&)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEEREEBEEEZERBCK(E)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk HEET/EE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group RRBECRBRERMNS A5H
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash ERREFR LR EBMER
equivalents deemed adequate by the management ERERREE KT  UBAER
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the SEEEERE  WEERREeRE
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management WENFTER 22 - BIEEERER
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures TERCERBER - WHERED EST
compliance with loan covenants. R o
The following table details the Group’s remaining TERFIAEEERIETESRE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BZHRTALNEBHEFE (hER
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The FHAE D) o R IIIBBE R AL E ]
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BERERNRcHERERHZERME
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest Bz RBRBSRERE - EF T
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The HAEMNERAERERE - BLFE
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. FEREME - RMRESBEIHER
To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the WEBRZIRITFIEE -
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
31 December 2020 202012 A 31 H
Repayable
Weighted  on demand In the third to Over Total
average or within Inthe fifth years, five undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear second year inclusive years  cash flow amount
REREED FoEERE RER
METHIRIE —£h 47F (BRERWE)  HBIE REREEE HEf
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR ARETr ARETn ARETn ARMTn ARETR
Trade payables EFENTE - 35,259 = - o 35,259 35,259
Financial libiites included stARMERTUE g
inother payables and accruals ~ JERMERAR - 13,685 - - - 13,685 13,685
Borrowings AR 46 25,569 - 8,830 - 34,399 33,830
Lease liabities BEAfR 47 13,654 5,832 7497 1,792 28,775 2,513
88,167 5,832 16,327 1,192 112,118 109,287
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

44, €I E ()

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) EIBEEREREBZERBEK(E)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEELERE (&)
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
Repayable
Weighted o demand In the third to Total
average or within Inthe fith years, undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  second year inclusive cash flow amount
REXERY E-EERE RER
GBI —£m F2% (REEEME) Rensed REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Trade payables BHEMNTE - 45,456 - - 45,456 45,456
Financial liabities included in ST AR AN FUR RS
other payables and accruals BREERER - 21,938 - - 21,938 21,938
Borrowings &3 8.13 55,134 - 9,550 64,684 63273
Lease liabilties HE8R 5.25 14,609 8,607 11,278 34,494 31,630
137,137 8,607 20,828 166,572 162,297
Fair Value Measurements of Financial (c) SWMIENAAEENE

Instruments

The fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

AEFRSRTANAABEGGER
HESEQAABESEBEERINH

approximate to fair values, are as follows: FgaT
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Financial assets SREE
Equity investment at FVTOCI AR BEFTAEAD
2HEBEHRERE - 812
- 812
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Fair Value Measurements of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of
financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

As at 31 December 2020, fair value loss of
RMB812,000 (2019: RMB2,188,000) is recognised
in other comprehensive expense, Details as set out in
note 22.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s
equity investment at FVTOCI, representing 14.29%
interest in UnionTest, is determined by Savills, an
independent valuer, by reference to the Group’s share
of adjusted net assets of UnionTest, which is the
significant unobservable input of the valuation of this
investment. The carrying amount of this unlisted equity
investment would be decreased by RMB81,000 if
there is a 10% decrease in the adjusted net assets of
UnionTest and vice versa, by holding other variables
constant.
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44.

TRIA (&)

(c)

TRTANAAEETE (&)

BEELHHERS  REERK
JIRMEREERBEN LA EE
HHMREEMES I EEHRNZ
ETAMBIHHRERE -

AEBEHERVTEE L ENMBEE
BEETERMIAAABEAEN
HERNEF -REREAH - M5
MoMEBMTANEEZLSHWETE
HEPHAERANEIEHAE -

TREEMBENAABENAZT
BEEBRRZHENRS (MIERGE
FEELE) PHAIRZERAR -

ARARBERERATITERR

s oF

M2020%12 A31H  AR# 812,000
J0(2019%F : AR¥E2,188,0007T) 2
ARBEEEDREM2EFZ #
R o FHBHRMIEE22 ©

MR2019F 12 4318 AEEEA
REE AR 2 U RRER
B (HREEEIE 14.20% #25) AR
EBEYHBILHEMSE —KFEH4H
Hf 45 22 22 7K 62 B I ORI B0 4 SR 28
BEEFEMET HAZEREM
BEHERTAEREE o WA 8
KRB EEFEMD10% - mEM
BHMERTE - BIZEIE L TRE
HERREERR D AR 81,000
TL RZINA o



44. Financial Instruments (Continued) 44,

(c) Fair Value Measurements of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

31 December 2019

a8 i%ib’z%% Byt (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 BILFE

TRIT A (&)

TRMTANAABESE ()

BALEEGTENEE (&)

20196 12A31H

Fair value measurement using

AR EEEHRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERUBE EEfUBE
EETISRE AR AR
(B—-ER) (BZEHR) (E=BH) ai
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Equity investment at FVTOCI A4 BIEETA
Hit 2 ERENRERE - - 812 812
- - 812 812




e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

44. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

(a)

Fair Value Measurements of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

44, £FT HE (&)
€ SBMIEMAABEENE(E)

BRI EETELH R

Equity investment

at FVTOCI
RARBERA
Hiph 2wk
Rt E
RMB’000
AREEFTT
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H 3,000
Unrealised fair value change recognised to REMEEFASZERZ
other comprehensive expense BRANEBEEE (2,188)
At 31 December 2019 R20194F 12 A31 H 812
Unrealised fair value change recognised to REMEEMZERZ
other comprehensive expense RERRA R EEES 812)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A 31 H -
45. Related Party Transactions 45. AR5
Transactions with related parties during the (@) FRBEBIXRS :
year:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T
Rental income from a former R B AE & (B2
associate MES KA = 226
Provision of technical services Bt & B3
by a former associate RALRT RS - 1,550
Purchase of property, plant and [FIRTHE & B EBE W% -
equipment and intangible B K sk DA &
assets from a former | EE
associate - 2,590
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

45. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Guarantees provided by related parties:

The Group’s bank loans amounting to RMB25,000,000
(2019: RMB15,000,000) as at 31 December 2020
were guaranteed by LI Xiangli.

The Group’s other borrowing amounting to
RMB40,134,000 as at 31 December 2019 was
guaranteed by Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited owned by LI Xiangli, Hawk Flying Investment
Holding Limited owned by Liu Yi and Swan Stone
Investment Holding Limited owned by ZHANG Aiying
with pledged shares which representing approximately
27.73% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. This borrowing was also guaranteed by
LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying. On 21 July 2020, the
Company fully settled the outstanding amounts of this
borrowing. The charges and guarantees was released
on 14 August 2020.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

45. BB RS (18)
(b) BIEESIREAIER

MR2020F 12 A31H  AEEKIR
1TEFR A AR#25,000,0007t(2019
F: AR¥15,000,0007T) © BHZEW
FIVELHELR -

R2019F 12831 H - AL EME
fib 1& 3% 7 A R ¥ 40,134,000 7T -
M Leon Cornerstone Investment
Holding Limited (B = A F|#H ) -
Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited (B3 2170 #E 5 ) & Swan Stone
Investment Holding Limited ( f 3k &
BEER)ELER  BHRMDEERR
AR B TR R A0 27.73% © L&
FINHF M FORERAIELER -
202047 A 218 » AAFEEE
TULE RO KRER ST - LR RE
REM 20204 8 A 14 BfER °

() AEEZTEEEABNME :

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits %2 #i{E B & 7 6,475 6,327
Pension scheme contributions RK& 5215 385 388

Equity-settled share option DR EENERERS
expense 98 414
6,958 7,129

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions between the Group and the related
parties were based on prices mutually agreed between
the parties and conducted in the ordinary course of
business.

ARBESERG AEEHEBEKT 2HW
RBIWET T 2 EHRE N ERHRET
WHe B EEBBEFHET
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of
the Company

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out

" Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

46. ARDATEEM B A RFE

TR AR ERLAEFAENE
ZMBRAFEWT

below:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ Form of ordinary/
registration business registered Percentage of equity
Name and business structure share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B #hAL/ E 7 BR{TEE/ AOARERERAL TERE
EREE S i
2019
N19F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B Bt ER ik
China Leon Inspection Briish Virgin Incorporated US$1.00 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holding (BVI) Limited! Islands i 10%T REAmR
AEABRES
Huaxia Leon Inspection Limited Hong Kong Incorporated HKS$100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
SENBREERDR &k Filii A 100%7 RERR
Lihong Inspection The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB50,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
NS hE oungd ARH50,0000007 el
enterprise
EEARE
Leon Overseas Singepore Sino-foreign SGD1,000,000 - 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
i owned 1,000 0003 IR TC BRI
enterprise
madtE
Saybott SG Singapore Sino-foreign SGD341,714 - 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
s onned 34 T143T IR (note 37) R RRA
enterprise (Wit ar)
maEhE
Leon Inspection & Testing Inala Sino-foreign INR500,000 - 4 - 4 Inspection and testing
Incia Private Limited 0% onned 500000EL (note i (note i) R LRA
enterprise (M) (Bi)
mhaErE
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy Indonesia Sino-foreign IDR10,005,000,000 - 51 - 51 Ingpection and testing
1 owned 10,005,000,000 BRREH
enterprise HEE
mhaERE
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46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 46. AN EIEEMEB A RFE (E)
the Company (Continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ Form of ordinary/
registration business registered Percentage of equity
Name and business structure share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B #hAL/ E 7 BEER/ ALREERERD TERE
EREES A
2020 2019
A20% 019F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
ER B iR [
Leon Inspection and Australia Sino-foreign AUD.00 - 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
Testing Australia Pty Lt | owned 10087 BEREA
enterprise
mahhE
Leon Inspection Testing Malaysia Sino-foreign MYR1,000,000 - 51 - 51 Inspection and tesfing
Senices Son. Bhd iy owned 1,000 0005 REREA
enterprise
meEhE
Leon Inspection & Testing Pakistan Sino-foreign PRK40,000,000 - 4 - 4 Inspection and testing
Privte Limited BEgE owned 40,000,000 (noteii) fnoteii RRRRY
enterprise EESREY (M) (Hi)
TeELE
Saybott Tianjin The PRC Sino-foreign 1S$1,150,000 - 4 - | Inspection and testing
REHE e owned 115000057 (note i and i) (note fand i) BEREH
enterprise (i Rii) (Wi Rii)
mhaERE
Leon HK Hong Kong Incorporated HKS1.00 - 4 - 4 Inspection and testing
B4 RaiA 1007 (note i and i note fand i) it ey
(WakiRii) (HaFiRii)
Leon-Saybot Inspection & Testing Sdn Bnd. ~ Brunei Sino-foreign B51,000 - 51 - 51 Standard technical
PE owned 10003 (noteii (noteii and qualty control
enterprise (Hiskiii) (Hsi) technical semices
LIy BERTRESEH
Kl
Qinhuangdao Liong Codl The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
Testing Co,, Ltd. 8 onned ARE1,0000007 and relevant senvioe
By enterprise B% - B AR
BB NERERE
Tangshan Huaxia Linong The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection, testing,
Commodity Inspection Gk onned ARE1,000,00070 appraisal and
Co,, Ltd. enterprise inspection
BLEENERRRSBERLE NEEERY technology
development
BE R FER
RERIRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 46. AN TEEEMEB A RFE (E)
the Company (Continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ Form of ordinary/
registration business registered Percentage of equity
Name and business structure share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ #haL/ EHRRIA BEEE/ RAFREREASL TEXR
BERESHY A
2020 19
0% N19F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Ef itk Ef itk
Tianjin Huaxia Liong Coal The PRC Wholly-foreign RWB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Ingpection and testing
Testing Co,, Ltd. hE owned ARE1,0000007 BRREA
REEE NERRAERAA enterprise
EEELE
Nanjing Lihong Coal Testing Co, Ltd. The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB3,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
HRNBEREIERLT E owngd AR#3,000,0007T RRRRA
enterprise
NEEARE
Guangzhou Lihong Coal The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB1,440,000 - 100 - 100 Professional
Testing Co,, Ltd. hE onned AR 1,4400007 technical senvice
BN nBRRREERAR enterprise ERRR
NERARE
Hebei Linong Minerals The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB3,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection
Inspection Co,, Ltd. HE owned ARE3,000,0007 technical achisory
MENBEERRR enterprise senice
ERAA ERERY RERITEARE
Hunan Lihong Coal Testing Co, Ltd. The PRC Wholy-foreign RNIB3,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
W nBERREERAA e owned ARE3,0000007 R
enterprise
hEEELR
ZhuhaiLidaohongtu Coal The PRC Wholly-foreign RWB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
Testing Technology Senvices Co,, Ltd, 8 owned ARE1,00000070 and advisory senices
R ERRRRRER T REERAD enterprise i R R
EEELE
Bejing Huaxia Lihong The PRC Wholly-foreign RWB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Software
Software Development Co, Lid, HE onned ARE1,0000007T development and
FREE RS RREERLR enterprise technical senvice
EEELE SRR RERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 46. AN EIEEMEB A RFE (E)

the Company (Continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ Form of ordinary/
registration business registered Percentage of equity
Name and business structure share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B #hAL/ E 7 BEER/ ALREERERD TERE
EREES A
2020 19
A20% 019F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
ER B iR ik
Tianjin Shengde Tiangong The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB10,000,000 - 100 - 100 Scientfc research,
Samping Technology Co,, Ltd. h owned ARE100000007 fechnical senvics
REEERTRERITARAA enterprise and business
NEEELY senice
H - SR
et
Shaanyi Huaxia Lihong The PRC Wholly-foreign RMBS0,000,000 - 55 - 5 Qualty Inspection
Commodiy Inspection Co., Lid. b owned ARE50,0000007T Senice
REZENRENRRERLT enterprise ESRBER
NEEERE
Leon Sanitary Inspection The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Vector biological
Technica " owned ARE1,0000007 controltechnology,
Senvice (Tianjin) Co, Ltd. enterprise technical development
NEEGERERE (X2 ERAT NEEALY and consulting
BNl
GUEEEE]
Xinjiang Huexia Lihong The PRC Wholly-foreign RWB5,000,000 - 100 - 100 Ingpection senvice
Commodiy Inspection Co., Lid. b owned AR 5,000,007 BERE
HRERNRBORSRERAT enterprise
NEEERE
Guangzhou Lihong Energy The PRC Wholly-foreign RMB5,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inspection and testing
BhRaE el owned ARB50000007 (note ) (note BRREH
enterprise (Hiti) (H&ti)
NEEELY

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC,
represent the best efforts of the management of the Company
in directly translating the Chinese names of the companies as
no English names have been registered.

A& B M Y A B3 AR R R
XA BmMEFRBEQRNRNA
BAARAEEERZENEEBELR
AP -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e IR AR ML (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

. . . - . = = =y
46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 46. AN TEEEMEB A RFE (E)
the Company (Continued)
0] During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group (i) HZE2019F12A31BIEFE  A&EH
disposed of 20% equity interests in Saybolt Tianjin and Leon i PRI I Leon HKEY 20% 4
HK. Further details are included in note 36 to the consolidated oo E— FFHIEHN RS M B mEM T
financial statements. 36 °
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group (i) HZE2019F12A31BIEFE  KAEH
acquired 50% of issued equity interest of Guangzhou Lihong M IETE AR A 2 W B B N D B BE IR 50% B2
Energy from non-controlling interest. Further details are BITRAER - E— T EHRNEGEEM
included in note 38B to the consolidated financial statements. TEHREMIFESSB °
(ii) These companies are subsidiaries of Leon Overseas. The (iif) % Z N 7] A Leon Overseas HIMTB AT ©
interests disclosed here represented the Group’s effective LERENERAAEBENZENE R
equity interests in these subsidiaries. The directors of the ANEREZR ARREFTRAELER
Company are in the opinion that the Group has control over FiBE % Leon Overseas (AR E|HFER
these subsidiaries through its control over Leon Overseas, a AW AR B ZE N w2
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 1 o
All these companies were incorporated with limited liability. FIEZERREMKLAER AR -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the BEMB A RN EREBITERERES
end of the year.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in EREF AR EERAERNEB LK
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected EENRBEETEZENARFNBER
the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details Al RABIESERE B TREMMBA
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the AZFFE BRBRIIER -
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
The table below shows details of non-wholly subsidiaries of TR AEBEERERFFIERERAIE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: 2 EMEBARRFS
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation interests and voting Profit (loss)
Name of and place rights held by non- allocated to non- Accumulated non-
subsidiary of business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
il NG AL FERERSE PREFERERNAE (5B) RitFRRER
HHREENS WHERRRZE
HEA
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019% 20205 2019%F 2020 % 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTL ARETT ARETL
Leon Overseas () Singapore 49% 49% 15,850 1,352 12,204 (4,495)
I
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controling interests 11,416 2812
BEFBRERNER
FEAHBAR
23,620 (1,689)

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
non-controlling interests pledged their equity interest to the
Group for the shareholder’s loans provided by the Company
to Leon Overseas.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Con’tinUed)

e R AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 831 AILFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 46. AN EIEEMEB A RFE (E)

the Company (Continued)

Summearised financial information in respect of the Group’s BHEEAEERIEZHOAEENE QRN
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out WBEMBESINOT o TXHEHBEER
below. The summarised financial information below represents REDEVNEENEIEZAINEEE -

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Leon Overseas Leon Overseas
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTIT
Current assets MEVEE 116,780 94,593
Non-current assets ERBEE 62,192 45,575
Current liabilities RBBEE (57,474) (60,654)
Non-current liabilities MBI AE (81,701) (90,508)
Equity attributable to owners NAREEB AEGREE
of the Company 20,784 6,494
Non-controlling interests Leon Overseas B FE1E AR i 2
of Leon Overseas 19,907 6,239
Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas [ff &~ &l #Y FEIZE A e 2
Leon Overseas subsidiaries (894) (1,744)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

46.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

the Company (Continued)

Leon Overseas (Continued)

46.

RAREBMNWE L RFE (E)

Leon Overseas (#&)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Revenue WA 304,987 155,415
Expenses FisZ (273,460) (153,401)
Profit for the year FRFE 31,527 2,014
Profit attributable to KBRS ANEEFE
owners of the Company 15,677 662
Profit attributable to Leon Overseas HIFE1E AR i 2
the non-controlling FEAEF)HE
interests of Leon Overseas 15,000 636
Profit attributable to Leon Overseas K1 & A 7]
the non-controlling B FEFE AR e 2 FE A )
interests of Leon Overseas
subsidiary 850 716
Profit for the year FRFE 31,527 2,014
Other comprehensive income AAEHEA AL EM AR
attributable to owners
of the Company (1,387) 204
Other comprehensive income Leon Overseas M) FEIERR 25 FE AL
attributable to the Efh =AWl
non-controlling interests of
Leon Overseas (1,332) 197
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKEE
for the year (2,719) 401
Total comprehensive income RATHRE AELEERERE
attributable to
owners of the Company 14,290 866
Total comprehensive income Leon Overseas B 3E1E A 1 25 FE A
attributable to the 2HREREE
non-controlling interests of
Leon Overseas 13,668 833
Total comprehensive income Leon Overseas fit B A I FEIE A i 2
attributable to the FE(REEW 85
non-controlling interests of
Leon Overseas subsidiaries 850 716
Total comprehensive income FREERELREE
for the year 28,808 2,415
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

— iy (4=
e SRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2020
B %= 202012 A31 BILFE

47. Event After the Reporting Period 47. HEHEEE
On 3 February 2021, a subsidiary of the Company has entered R2021F2A3H ARG ERF E
into the sale and purchase agreements with the vendors for BRIV EEMRARBLNFESY BT
the acquisition of the target companies located in the PRC. NE . BRAREENFRERBEAR
The principal activities of the target companies are providing BOBARTS - BIEAERREA - TR - IR
environmental monitoring and testing services including BEMF ARG - URRPM - BEEXR
ecological monitoring, soil testing, environmental technology WEHE  RHETK °

consultation and assessment as well as carbon neutrality. The
transaction has been completed up to the date of this report.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R AR AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE 2020612 A31 BILFE

48. Statement of Financial Position of the PN B S ) O
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RMERREBE AR AT BARRAKRNE R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: LU
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% B - 1
Investment in a subsidiary REKE AR 61,281 58,044
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE ¢ 78,481 67,093
Right-of-use assets FREEE 137 457
Total non-current assets JERBNE EBE 139,899 125,595
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables E b U EIR 6,318 312
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUSH B A R FE 27,390 73,274
Cash and cash equivalents Re RReEEY 5,725 2,115
Total current assets MENBERE 39,433 75,701
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables E e ERIE 8,686 16,569
Other borrowings HEfER - 41,140
Lease liabilities HEBaFE 125 301
Total current liabilities mEN B ERRE 8,811 58,010
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 30,622 17,691
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 170,521 143,286
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEEE - 143
Net assets BERE 170,521 143,143
EQUITY =
Share capital (%N 131 131
Reserves Gk 170,390 143,012
Total equity MEZR 4R RE 170,521 143,143
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48. Statement of Financial Position of the

49.

> &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

IR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 31 BILFE

Company (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows:

48. ALQ BB K (&)

VPN

b7 N =]

Mt AQRREEE2OT

Capital Share Retained profits
reserve option (accumulated
(Note) reserve losses) Total
BXGE REFE
(Fff=E) BRERE (R&tE8) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 /18 125,869 2,180 (4,304) 123,745
Profit and total comprehensive  FAAIE R 2 E AL
income for the year - - 21,423 21,423
Final 2018 dividend declared B EIE2018EREIRE - - (3,000) (3,000)
Equity-settled shares option PMEREE B RIER Y
expense - 844 - 844
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 125,869 3,024 14,119 143,012
Profit and total comprehensive  FAAE R 2 E AL
income for the year - - 42,151 42,151
Final 2019 dividend declared ~ BEIE2019FKEMRE - - (15,000) (15,000)
Equity-settled shares option PMEREE M RIER S
expense - 227 - 227
At 31 December 2020 P2020512 A31 R 125,869 3,251 41,270 170,390
Note: The amounts represent for i) the share premium of et ZE2BEA)IARR B BEITRA

the issued share capital of the Company; and ii) the
difference between the nominal values of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the share capital
of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of
shares pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company

in prior years.

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements

commencement, the Group recognised RMB7,098,000 right-
of-use assets and RMB7,098,000 lease liabilities (2019:
RMB18,036,000 right-of-use assets and RMB18,036,000

lease liabilities).

for the use of leased properties for 2 to 5 years. On the lease

ZBORE - Ri) AR B BT
TRREEREBREARAB
EFEERETRND IS
MR R Z AR Z R =58 -

49. EXFBREXRS

FR - ANEBEREAAEMEI L AR
SEMFHEERZ - NEERBR - A5E

RARME 7,008,000 T FEBEEERA
R# 7,008,000 LMHEEE (20194F © A
E#18,036,000 THIf AEEE R AR
18,036,000 THHE&EE) °
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Financial Summary

=

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 F 2017 4 20184 20194 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000
AREBFT ARETT ARETT AREBTT AR%®TR
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BfFEE1) (Mt3E2)
Revenue 'ON 186,466 200,921 233,750 396,456 573,990
Profit before income tax FriS At A AE 38,058 43,137 14,212 46,900 92,329
Income tax expense Fris b (4,430) (8,434) 9,311) (18,143) (17,471)
Profit for the year FRRH 33,628 34,703 4,901 28,757 74,858
Profit attributable to: T & IEEGFIE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ SN 33,628 35,595 14,021 24171 50,767
Non-controlling interests IR - (892) (9,120) 4,586 24,591
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 4F 2017 20184F 20194 2020 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 ~ RMB’000
ARBFIT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%¥TxR
Total assets BEMBE 216,758 254,370 328,854 414,485 439,521
Total liabilities AfEesE 45,108 56,072 131,863 193,215 164,796
Equity attributable to PA/NIEZS DN
owners of the Company R HERS 171,650 195,206 201,884 222 953 251,105
Notes: PR -
1. In 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 15, IFRS 9 and other 1. MR20184F - AEBEE ERCERMB®E LD

amendments to IFRSs. Accordingly, certain comparative information
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 may not be
comparable to the year ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 as
such comparative information was prepared under IAS 18 and IAS 39.

2. In 2019, the Group has applied IFRS 16. Accordingly, certain
comparative information for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 may not be comparable to the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 as such comparative information was

prepared under IAS 17.
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F155% « CEIBRB # 3Rk & 4R R DB O 5% IeC B B B
BMEFERDEEAMIEET - B - BIE20165F K&
201712 A31 BIEFEME THLEE R AT AL
HZE 20184 ~ 2019F & 2020F 12 A31 HIEF
EAALEER  BAZSLRENDBEERS
FTHERIDEE 18 9% RCBIBR & 514D 39 S AR &Y
H o

R20194F - AEBE ERACERMB®EERD
F165% AL - & = 20164 + 2017 4 22018
F12A31 AIEFEME THRER AIgEEEZE
2019F K 2020F 12 A1 HIEFE T A LL & -
EARZELRER IR B(BEBR R %R)E17
SEATAR B



Definitions

i

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFEREN - RXESEIEIN - T35z
following expressions shall have the following meanings. BLAT R °
“AGM(s)” annual general meeting(s) of the Company

[BERAFAE ]

“Articles”
[E124RA1 ]

“Audit Committee”

BARRMBERBEAE

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 18 June 2016

EARRNTR2016F 6 A 18 BER AL = 12408

the audit committee of the Company

(B Eg] BARANEZEZES

“Board” the board of Directors of the Company

[E£g ] BARANESRS

“CEQ” chief executive officer of the Company

[{TH AR ] EARAINITHARR

“China” or “PRC” the People’s Republic of China

[ EhE AR AT

“CG Code” the “Corporate Governance Code” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

[(EEERTAD]

HECETAR B8 14 FrE e R ER<FAD

“Company”, “our Company”, China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (9 Bl /7388542 A% AR A 7]), an exempted
“Group”, “our Group”, company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on

“China Leon”, “we” or “us” 29 July 2015 and except where the context indicated otherwise its subsidiaries

[ARE]] - [AREH] ERENBRBERERAR - —KR2015F 7 A 29 R RIEMR S B S EREMK
[REA] 8k [#Af] VHERPBREER ﬂ&(ﬁ%X%%ﬁPﬁ%ﬁl\)EBﬁ%ﬁﬁ

“Controlling Shareholders” Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding

Limited, Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment

Holding Limited

[ R BEMAMEE KRB R Z T 2 3 5% & - Leon Cornerstone Investment
Holding Limited ~ Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited }2 Hawk Flying Investment

Holding Limited

“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company

(&% BARREE

“HKS” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
[T BEBEEEY BT
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Definitions

“Lihong Inspection”

[ histas]

“Listing Rules”
[(EmHRAD]
“Model Code”
[(R¥ESPA ]

“Nomination Committee”

Fr==E3

“y ear’

[ AFE ]

“Prospectus”

[ ER ]

“Remuneration Committee”

[HNEEE

“RMB”
[ARE]

“SFO”

[(FEZ REIE 15

“Share(s)”

(A7 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ ER

“Stock Exchange”
B3zl

“gp
[%)]

Lihong Inspection Group Limited (/1% 1%:5% 5 [ 4 fR 2 7)) (formerly known as “Beijing
Huaxia Lihong Commodity Inspection Co., Ltd. (It REE NEEMmBBRAER A A)),
a company incorporated in the PRC on 19 January 2009 and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

ENBRREEERAR (AIE [ REENBERBRBARAGF]) - —FKX 2009
F1A19BEFEFMKIHAR] - AEARANEZEEENE QA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended
from time to time)

HEC R RS EMARRD(EAEHERT)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EC ETRBDMHER 10 T 2K EMBITAEFETEL I HNITESTA]D

the nomination committee of the Company

BARBMREREZES

from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
8B 20201 A1 HZE2020F12 A31 8

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
FEAARIBEIA2016 4 6 A 29 ARBIKRER

the remuneration committee of the Company
BARRINFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

EHEMEEER - ARK

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEBEDIEST1 B EHF REIEEN) - ARHERT » s AR T &2k

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our
Company
AR E B BT B AR E (& 0.00005 3 7T H) & i A%

holder(s) of the Shares
EROFBEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBMARIMERAQT

per cent.
EaDt
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